

NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORPORATION

Offer to Exchange up to \$379,372,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended for

Any and all outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended

The Exchange Offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless extended

We hereby offer, upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this prospectus and the accompanying letter of transmittal (which together constitute the "Exchange Offer"), to exchange any and all of our outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 (CUSIP 637432 MR3), referred to herein as the Original Bonds, for a like amount of our 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, referred to herein as the Exchange Bonds, and together with the Original Bonds, referred to herein as the Bonds. The terms of the Exchange Offer are summarized below and are more fully described in this prospectus.

The terms of the Exchange Bonds are identical to the terms of the corresponding Original Bonds in all material respects, except that the Exchange Bonds are registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, referred to herein as the Securities Act, and the transfer restrictions, registration rights and additional interest provisions applicable to the Original Bonds do not apply to the Exchange Bonds.

We will accept for exchange any and all Original Bonds validly tendered and not validly withdrawn prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless extended.

You may withdraw tenders of Original Bonds at any time prior to the expiration of the Exchange Offer.

We will not receive any proceeds from the Exchange Offer.

The exchange of the Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds will not be a taxable event for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

We do not intend to list the Exchange Bonds on any securities exchange.

For a discussion of factors you should consider before you decide to participate in the exchange offer, see "Risk Factors" beginning on page 9.

We are not asking you for a proxy, and you are requested not to send us a proxy.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a criminal offense.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Where You Can Find More Information	
Incorporation by Reference	ii
Summary	
Risk Factors	9
Forward Looking Information	11
Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges	11
Use of Proceeds	11
Selected Historical Consolidated Financial Data	12
The Exchange Offer	15
Description of the Exchange Bonds	27
Book-Entry Debt Securities	35
Material U.S. Federal Income Tax Consequences	40
Plan of Distribution	41
Legal Matters	42
Experts	42

Each broker-dealer that receives Exchange Bonds for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the Exchange Bonds. The letter of transmittal states that by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act. This prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of Exchange Bonds received in exchange for Original Bonds where the Original Bonds were acquired by the broker-dealer as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that, for a period of up to 270 days after the expiration of the Exchange Offer, we will make this prospectus available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale. See "Plan of Distribution."

You should rely only on the information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with different information. No person has been authorized to give any information or make any representations in connection with the Exchange Offer, other than the information and those representations contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in the accompanying letter of transmittal. We are not making an offer of these securities in any state or jurisdiction where the offer is not permitted. You should not assume that the information provided by this prospectus or the documents incorporated by reference herein is accurate as of any date other than the date of such prospectus or incorporated documents, regardless of the date you receive them.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We file annual, quarterly and current reports and other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission, referred to herein as the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC's Public Reference Room located at 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Please call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for further information about the operation of the Public Reference Room. Our SEC filings are also available to the public at the SEC's website at http://www.sec.gov.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we have filed with the SEC in connection with the Exchange Offer. As permitted by SEC rules, this prospectus may not contain all of the information we have included in the registration statement and its accompanying exhibits and schedules. You may refer to the registration statement, exhibits and schedules for more information about us and the securities. The registration statement, exhibits and schedules are available through the SEC's Public Reference Room or website.

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to "incorporate by reference" into this prospectus information we have filed with the SEC, which means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to those filed documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus, and the information we subsequently file with the SEC will automatically update and supersede the information in this prospectus. Absent unusual circumstances, we will have no obligation to amend this prospectus, other than filing subsequent information with the SEC. We incorporate by reference the documents listed below and any future filing made with the SEC under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, referred to as the Exchange Act, until this offering is completed:

- Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012 (filed August 15, 2012);
- Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the quarters ended August 31, 2012 (filed October 15, 2012 and as amended on November 6, 2012) and November 30, 2012 (filed January 14, 2013); and
- Current Reports on Form 8-K, dated September 11, 2012 (filed September 12, 2012), September 24, 2012 (filed September 25, 2012), October 9, 2012 (filed October 10, 2012), October 16, 2012 (filed October 17, 2012) December 4, 2012 (filed December 4, 2012) and January 30, 2013 (filed January 30, 2013 and February 4, 2013).

We are not incorporating by reference any document or information that is deemed to be furnished and not filed in accordance with SEC rules.

Any statement contained in a document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus will not be deemed to be modified for purposes of this prospectus to the extent that a statement contained in this prospectus or any other subsequently filed document that is deemed to be incorporated by reference into this prospectus modifies or supersedes the statement. Any statement so modified or superseded will not be deemed, except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this prospectus.

You may request a copy of these filings from the SEC as described under "Where You Can Find More Information." You may also request, at no cost (other than an exhibit to these filings, or an exhibit to any other filings incorporated by reference into this registration statement, unless we have incorporated that exhibit by reference into this registration statement), a copy of these filings by writing to or telephoning us at the following address:

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation 20701 Cooperative Way Dulles, VA 20166-6691 (703) 467-1800 Attn: J. Andrew Don, Senior Vice President and Treasurer These filings are also available through the Financial Reporting subsection of the Investor Relations section of our website: www.nrucfc.coop. Information on our website does not constitute a part of this prospectus.

If you would like to request documents, in order to ensure timely delivery you must do so at least five business days before the expiration of the Exchange Offer, initially scheduled for 5:00 pm, New York City time, on March 6, 2013. This means you must request this information no later than February 27, 2013.

SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information from this prospectus and is therefore qualified in its entirety by the more detailed information appearing elsewhere, or incorporated by reference, in this prospectus. It may not contain all the information that is important to you. We urge you to read carefully this entire prospectus and the other documents to which it refers to understand fully the terms of the Exchange Bonds and the Exchange Offer. Unless the context otherwise requires, references in this prospectus to "CFC," "the Company," "we," "our," "ours" and "us" refer to National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation.

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation

CFC is a member-owned cooperative association incorporated under the laws of the District of Columbia in April 1969. The principal purpose of CFC is to provide its members with financing to supplement the loan programs of the Rural Utilities Service, referred to herein as RUS, of the United States Department of Agriculture. CFC makes loans to its rural electric members so they can acquire, construct and operate electric distribution, generation, transmission and related facilities. CFC also provides its members with credit enhancements in the form of letters of credit and guarantees of debt obligations. As a cooperative, CFC is owned by and exclusively serves its membership, which consists solely of not-for-profit entities or subsidiaries or affiliates of not-for-profit entities. CFC is exempt from payment of federal income taxes under the provisions of section 501(c)(4) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). As a member-owned cooperative, CFC has no publicly held equities outstanding. CFC funds its activities primarily through a combination of publicly and privately held debt securities and member investments. CFC's objective is to offer its members cost-based financial products and services consistent with sound financial management and is not to maximize net income. CFC allocates its net earnings, which consist of net income excluding the effect of certain non-cash accounting entries, annually to a cooperative educational fund, a members' capital reserve, a general reserve, if necessary, and to members based on each member's patronage of CFC's loan programs during the year. The Company's headquarters are located at 20701 Cooperative Way, Dulles, VA 20166 and its telephone number is (703) 467-1800.

Rural Telephone Finance Cooperative, referred to herein as RTFC, is a cooperative association originally incorporated in South Dakota in 1987 and reincorporated as a member-owned cooperative association in the District of Columbia in 2005. RTFC's principal purpose is to provide and arrange financing for its rural telecommunications members and their affiliates. RTFC's membership consists of a combination of not-for-profit entities and for-profit entities. CFC is the sole lender to and manages the business operations of RTFC through a long-term management agreement. Under a guarantee agreement, RTFC pays CFC a fee, and in exchange, CFC reimburses RTFC for loan losses. RTFC is headquartered with CFC in Dulles, Virginia. RTFC is a taxable cooperative that pays income tax based on its net income, excluding patronage-sourced net earnings allocated to its patrons, as permitted under Subchapter T of the Code.

National Cooperative Services Corporation, referred to herein as NCSC, was incorporated in 1981 in the District of Columbia as a member-owned cooperative association. The principal purpose of NCSC is to provide financing to members of CFC, entities eligible to be members of CFC and for-profit and non-profit entities that are owned, operated or controlled by, or provide benefit to Class A, B and C members of CFC. NCSC's membership consists of CFC and distribution systems that are members of CFC or are eligible for such membership. CFC is the primary source of funding to and manages the business operations of NCSC through a management agreement that is automatically renewable on an annual basis unless terminated by either party. Under a guarantee agreement, NCSC pays CFC a fee and, in exchange, CFC reimburses NCSC for loan losses. NCSC is headquartered with CFC in Dulles, Virginia. NCSC is a taxable cooperative. Thus, NCSC pays income tax on the full amount of its net income.

CFC's financial statements consolidate the results of RTFC and NCSC because it is the primary beneficiary of variable interests in RTFC and NCSC due to its exposure to absorbing the majority of expected losses and because CFC manages the lending activities of RTFC and NCSC. CFC also consolidates the financial results of certain entities created and controlled by CFC to hold foreclosed assets and accommodate loan securitization transactions.
The foregoing information about us is only a general summary and is not intended to be comprehensive. For additional information, you should refer to the information under the headings "Where You Can Find More Information" and "Incorporation by Reference."

The Exchange Offer

On October 16, 2012, in connection with a private exchange offer, we issued \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of our 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032. As part of that issuance, we entered into a registration rights agreements with the dealer manager of the private exchange offer, dated as of October 16, 2012, in which we agreed, among other things, to deliver this prospectus to you and to use all commercially reasonable efforts to complete an exchange offer for the Original Bonds. The following is a summary of the Exchange Offer. For a more complete description of the terms of the Exchange Offer, see "The Exchange Offer" in this prospectus.

Securities Offered	. Up to \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of our 4.023%				
	Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032, registered under the Securities Act.				
	The form and terms of the Exchange Bonds offered in the Exchange				
	Offer are identical in all material respects to those of the Original				
	Bonds, except that the Exchange Bonds are registered under the				
	Securities Act and the transfer restrictions, registration rights and				
	additional interest provisions relating to the Original Bonds do not				
	apply to the Exchange Bonds.				

We are offering to exchange any and all of our outstanding Original Bonds for a like principal amount of Exchange Bonds. We are offering these Exchange Bonds to satisfy our obligations under a registration rights agreement which we entered into in connection with the issuance of the Original Bonds. You may tender the Original Bonds only in denominations of \$2,000 and any integral multiple of \$1,000 in excess thereof. We will issue Exchange Bonds promptly after the expiration of the Exchange Offer. In order to be exchanged, an Original Bond must be properly tendered and accepted. All Original Bonds that are validly tendered and not validly withdrawn will be exchanged. As of the date of this prospectus, there is \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of Original Bonds outstanding. The \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of Original Bonds were issued under an indenture dated October 25,

2007.
The Exchange Offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless we extend it. You may withdraw any Original Bonds that you tender for exchange at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date of the Exchange Offer. We will accept any and all Original Bonds validly tendered and not validly withdrawn on or before 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date. See "The Exchange Offer—Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds" and "—Withdrawal of Tenders of Original Bonds" for a more complete description of the tender and withdrawal period.

We will deliver the Exchange Bonds with respect to the Exchange Offer on the settlement date, which will be the fifth business day following the expiration date of the Exchange Offer or as soon as practicable thereafter.

The Exchange Offer

Expiration Date; Tenders; Withdrawal ...

Settlement

Accrued Interest

The Exchange Bonds will bear interest from October 16, 2012. If your Original Bonds are accepted for exchange, you will receive interest on the Exchange Bonds and not on the Original Bonds, provided that you will receive interest on the Original Bonds and not the Exchange Bonds if and to the extent the record date for such interest payment occurs prior to completion of the Exchange Offer. Any Original Bonds not tendered will remain outstanding and continue to accrue interest according to their terms.

Conditions to the Exchange Offer

The Exchange Offer is subject to customary conditions. Notwithstanding any other terms of the Exchange Offer, or any extension of the Exchange Offer, we do not have to accept for exchange, or exchange Exchange Bonds for, any Original Bonds, and we may terminate the Exchange Offer before acceptance of the Original Bonds, if in our reasonable judgment:

- the Exchange Offer would violate applicable law or any applicable interpretation of the staff of the SEC; or
- any action or proceeding has been instituted or threatened in any court or by any governmental agency that might materially impair our ability to proceed with the exchange offer or, in any such action or proceeding, any material adverse development has occurred with respect to us.

If we materially change the terms of the Exchange Offer, we will resolicit tenders of the Original Bonds and extend the Exchange Offer period. See "The Exchange Offer—Conditions to the Exchange Offer" for more information.

A tendering holder must, on or prior to the expiration date:

- complete, sign and date a letter of transmittal, or a facsimile thereof, in accordance with the instructions in the letter of transmittal, including guaranteeing the signatures to the letter of transmittal, if required, and mail or otherwise deliver the letter of transmittal or a facsimile thereof, together with the certificates representing your Original Bonds specified in the letter of transmittal, to the exchange agent at the address listed in the letter of transmittal, for receipt on or prior to the expiration date; or
- comply with The Depository Trust Company's Automated Tender Offer Program procedures for book-entry transfer on or prior to the expiration date.

If you are tendering your Original Bonds in exchange for Exchange Bonds and anticipate delivering your letter of transmittal and other documents other than through The Depository Trust Company, we urge you to contact promptly a bank, broker or other intermediary that has the capability to hold bonds custodially through The Depository Trust Company to arrange for receipt of any Exchange Bonds to be delivered pursuant to the Exchange Offer and to obtain the information necessary to provide the required The Depository Trust Company participant with account information in the letter of transmittal.

See "The Exchange Offer—Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds."

Consequences of Your Failure to Exchange Your Original Bonds

Original Bonds that are not exchanged in the Exchange Offer will continue to be subject to the restrictions on transfer that are described in the legend on the Original Bonds. In general, you may offer or sell your Original Bonds only if they are registered under, or offered or sold under an exemption from, the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. We do not currently intend to register the Original Bonds under the Securities Act (except as discussed in the next sentence). Following consummation of the Exchange Offer, we will not be required to register under the Securities Act any Original Bonds that remain outstanding except in the limited circumstances in which we are obligated to file a shelf registration statement for certain holders of Original Bonds not eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer pursuant to the registration rights agreement. If your Original Bonds are not tendered and accepted in the Exchange Offer, it may become more difficult for you to sell or transfer your Original Bonds. For more information regarding the consequences of not tendering your Original Bonds and our obligations to file a shelf registration statement, see "The Exchange Offer—Consequences of Failure to Exchange" and "The Exchange Offer—Registration Rights Agreement."

Consequences of Exchanging Your Original Bonds; Who May Participate in the Exchange Offer

Based on interpretations of the staff of the SEC, we believe that you will be allowed to resell the Exchange Bonds that we issue in the Exchange Offer without complying with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act if:

- you are acquiring the Exchange Bonds in the ordinary course of your business;
- you are not participating in and do not intend to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds;
- you have no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds;
- you are not one of our "affiliates," as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act; and
- if you are a broker-dealer, you acquired the Original Bonds as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities and not directly from us for your own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds.

If any of these conditions are not satisfied, you will not be eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer, you should not rely on the interpretations of the staff of the SEC in connection with the Exchange Offer and you must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with the resale of your bonds.

If you are a broker-dealer and you will receive Exchange Bonds for your own account in exchange for Original Bonds that you acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, you will be required to acknowledge that you will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the Exchange Bonds. See "Plan of Distribution" for a description of the prospectus delivery obligations of broker-dealers in the Exchange Offer.

Material U.S. Federal Income

Tax Consequences For a summary of certain U.S. federal income tax consequences of the Exchange Offer, see "Material U.S. Federal Income Tax

Consequences."

Exchange Agent D.F. King & Co., Inc. is acting as the exchange agent in connection with this Exchange Offer. The address and telephone number of D.F.

King & Co., Inc. are listed under the heading "The Exchange Offer—

Exchange Agent."

Use of Proceeds; Expenses We will not receive any proceeds from the issuance of Exchange

Bonds in the Exchange Offer. We will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the performance of our obligations in the Exchange Offer, including registration fees, fees and expenses of the exchange agent and printing costs, among others. We have not retained any dealer-manager or other soliciting agent for the Exchange Offer and will not make any payments to brokers, dealers, or others soliciting acceptance of the Exchange Offer. See "The Exchange Offer—Fees

and Expenses."

Risk Factors See Part I, Item 1A, "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on

Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus. See "Incorporation by Reference." For a discussion of significant risk factors applicable to the Exchange Bonds and the Exchange Offer, see "Risk Factors" beginning on page 9 of this prospectus for a discussion of the factors you should carefully consider before deciding to participate in the Exchange

Offer.

The Exchange Bonds

The following is a summary of the terms of the Exchange Bonds. The form and terms of the Exchange Bonds are identical in all material respects to those of the Original Bonds, except that the Exchange Bonds are registered under the Securities Act and the transfer restrictions, registration rights and additional interest provisions applicable to the Original Bonds do not apply to the Exchange Bonds. The Exchange Bonds will evidence the same debt as the Original Bonds and will be governed by that certain indenture dated as of October 25, 2007 (as amended from time to time), referred to herein as the Indenture, between us and U.S. Bank National Association, referred to herein as the Trustee. Certain of the terms and conditions described below are subject to important limitations and exceptions. For a more detailed description of the terms and conditions of the Exchange Bonds, see the section of this prospectus entitled "Description of Exchange Bonds."

Issuer	National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation			
Securities Offered	Up to \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032.			
Maturity Date	November 1, 2032.			
Interest Rate	4.023% per annum.			
Interest Payment Dates	Semi-annually on May 1 and November 1 of each year, beginning on May 1, 2013. Interest on the Exchange Bonds will accrue from the last interest payment date on which interest was paid on the Original Bonds surrendered in exchange therefor.			
Ranking	Except as to security, the Exchange Bonds will rank on a parity with all other senior obligations of CFC, other than debt with statutory priority.			
Security	The Exchange Bonds will be secured under the Indenture, equally with all existing collateral trust bonds which have previously been or may be subsequently issued under the Indenture, by the pledge with the trustee of eligible collateral having an "allowable amount" (as defined in the Indenture) at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of collateral trust bonds outstanding under the Indenture at any time. Collateral for outstanding collateral trust bonds, including the Exchange Bonds, will consist of mortgage notes of distribution system members, cash and permitted investments in accordance with the Indenture.			
Make-Whole Redemption	We may redeem the Exchange Bonds prior to May 1, 2032 (which is the date that is six months prior to the maturity of the Exchange Bonds), in whole at any time or in part from time to time, at a makewhole redemption price, together with accrued but unpaid interest to the redemption dates, as described elsewhere in this prospectus. Additionally, at any time on or after May 1, 2032 (which is the date that is six months prior to the maturity of the Exchange Bonds), we may redeem the Exchange Bonds, at our option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the			

	Exchange Bonds then outstanding to be redeemed, plus accrued but unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption. See "Description of the Exchange Bonds."
Listing	We do not intend to list the Exchange Bonds on any securities exchange.
Governing Law	The Exchange Bonds and the Indenture will be governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.
Book-Entry Depository	The Depository Trust Company
Trustee	U.S. Bank National Association
Additional Issues	We may, without the consent of the existing holders of the Exchange Bonds, "re-open" the series of Exchange Bonds and issue additional Exchange Bonds, which additional bonds will have the same terms as the Exchange Bonds issued hereby except for the issue price, issue date and under some circumstances, the first interest payment date. We will not issue any additional Exchange Bonds unless the additional Exchange Bonds will be fungible with the Exchange Bonds issued hereby for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

RISK FACTORS

You should consider carefully the following risks relating to the Exchange Offer, the Original Bonds and Exchange Bonds, together with the risks and uncertainties discussed under "Forward-Looking Information" and the other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus, including the information under the heading "Risk Factors" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012, as such risk factors may be updated from time to time in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, before tendering your Original Bonds in the Exchange Offer. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known to us, or that we currently deem immaterial, may also impair our business operations. We cannot assure you that any of the events discussed in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus will not occur. If they do, our business, financial condition or results of operations could be materially and adversely affected.

An active trading market for the Bonds may not develop, which could make it difficult to resell your Bonds at their fair market value or at all.

The Exchange Bonds are an issue of securities for which there is currently no public market. We do not intend to list the Exchange Bonds on any national securities exchange or automated quotation system. Accordingly, no market for the Exchange Bonds may develop, and any market that develops may not last. If the Exchange Bonds are traded, they may trade at a discount from their initial offering price, depending on prevailing interest rates, the market for similar securities, our performance and other factors. To the extent that an active trading market does not develop, you may not be able to resell your Exchange Bonds at their fair market value or at all.

To the extent that Original Bonds are tendered and accepted in the Exchange Offer, the trading market for which are not exchanged could be adversely affected due to the limited amount of Original Bonds that are expected to remain outstanding following the Exchange Offer. Generally, when there are fewer outstanding securities of an issue, there is less demand to purchase that security, which results in a lower price for the security. Conversely, if many Original Bonds are not exchanged, the trading market for the Exchange Bonds could be adversely affected. See "Plan of Distribution" and "The Exchange Offer" for further information regarding the distribution of the Exchange Bonds and the consequences of failure to participate in the Exchange Offer.

If you do not exchange your Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds, you will continue to have restrictions on your ability to resell them, which could reduce their value.

The Original Bonds were not registered under the Securities Act or under the securities laws of any state and may not be resold, offered for resale, or otherwise transferred unless they are subsequently registered or resold pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws. If you do not exchange your Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer, you will not be able to resell, offer to resell, or otherwise transfer the Original Bonds unless they are registered under the Securities Act or unless you resell them, offer to resell them or otherwise transfer them under an exemption from the registration requirements of, or in a transaction not subject to, the Securities Act. In addition, we will no longer be under an obligation to register the Original Bonds under the Securities Act except in the limited circumstances provided in the registration rights agreement.

The Trustee may experience difficulty liquidating or enforcing payment on mortgage notes pledged as collateral after an Event of Default.

If an Event of Default (as defined herein) occurs under the Indenture and is continuing 30 days following notice from the Trustee (as defined herein) requiring us to remedy such Event of Default, the Trustee may sell any or all of the mortgage notes or other property pledged as collateral.

If the Trustee attempts to sell any or all of the mortgage notes or any other pledged property, the Trustee may be unable to find a purchaser for such notes or property, or may be unable to liquidate such notes or property in an orderly or timely manner. Additionally, the market value of such notes or property realized in any sale may not be sufficient to make bondholders whole. The amount to be received upon such sale would depend on many factors, including, but not limited to, the time and manner of sale.

FORWARD LOOKING INFORMATION

This prospectus, including the information incorporated by reference herein, contains forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements, which are based on certain assumptions and describe our future plans, strategies and expectations, are generally identified by our use of words such as "intend," "plan," "may," "should," "will," "project," "estimate," "anticipate," "believe," "expect," "continue," "potential," "opportunity" and similar expressions, whether in the negative or affirmative. All statements about future expectations or projection, including statements about loan volume, the adequacy of the loan loss allowance, operating income and expenses, leverage and debt to equity ratios, borrower financial performance, impaired loans, and sources and uses of liquidity, are forward-looking statements. Although we believe that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, actual results and performance could materially differ. Factors that could cause future results to vary from current expectations include, but are not limited to, general economic conditions, legislative changes including those that could affect our tax status, governmental monetary and fiscal policies, demand for our loan products, lending competition, changes in the quality or composition of our loan portfolio, changes in our ability to access external financing, changes in the credit ratings on our debt, valuation of collateral supporting impaired loans, charges associated with our operation or disposition of foreclosed assets, regulatory and economic conditions in the rural electric industry, non-performance of counterparties to our derivative agreements and the costs and effects of legal or governmental proceedings involving CFC or its members. Some of these and other factors are discussed in our annual and quarterly reports previously filed with the SEC. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update or publicly release any revisions to forward-looking statements to reflect new information, future events or changes in expectations after the date on which the statement is made.

RATIO OF EARNINGS TO FIXED CHARGES

Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the five years ended May 31, 2012 are included in Exhibit 12 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2012, and are incorporated by reference into this prospectus. Our ratio of earnings to fixed charges for the three and six months ended November 30, 2012 are included in our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2012, and are incorporated by reference.

USE OF PROCEEDS

This Exchange Offer is intended to satisfy our obligations under the registration rights agreement. We will not receive any proceeds from the Exchange Offer. You will receive, in exchange for Original Bonds validly tendered and accepted for exchange pursuant to the Exchange Offer, Exchange Bonds in the same principal amount as your Original Bonds. Original Bonds validly tendered and accepted for exchange pursuant to the Exchange Offer will be retired and cancelled. Accordingly, the issuance of the Exchange Bonds will not result in any increase of our outstanding debt.

SELECTED HISTORICAL CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table sets forth certain of our consolidated financial data. The consolidated financial data as of and for the years ended May 31, 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 is derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The consolidated statement of operations data for each of the years in the three-year period ended May 31, 2012 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of May 31, 2012 and 2011 have been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference herein. The consolidated statement of operations data for the years ended May 31, 2009 and 2008 and the consolidated balance sheet data as of May 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008 have been derived from the audited consolidated financial statements not included or incorporated by reference herein. The consolidated financial information as of and for the six months ended November 30, 2012 and 2011 is derived from our unaudited consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, includes all adjustments (consisting of normal, recurring adjustments) necessary for a fair statement of our financial position and results of operations for such periods. Interim results for the six months ended November 30, 2012 are not necessarily indicative of results for the remainder of the fiscal year or for any future period.

The selected historical financial data below should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements for those periods and their accompanying notes and "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation" in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012, which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus. See "Incorporation by Reference."

Selected Financial Data

(dollar amounts in thousands)	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
For the year ended May 31:					
Interest income	\$ 960,961	\$ 1,008,911	\$ 1,043,635	\$ 1,070,764	\$ 1,051,393
Net interest income	199,183	167,831	131,524	135,743	120,125
Derivative losses (1)	(236,620)	(30,236)	(20,608)	(47,028)	(71,710)
(Loss) income prior to income taxes (2)	(151,404)	152,542	110,251	(78,871)	36,311
Net (loss) income (3)	(148,797)	151,215	110,547	(73,770)	39,646
Fixed-charge coverage ratio/TIER (3)(4)	_	1.18	1.12	_	1.04
Adjusted TIER (5)	1.10	1.21	1.12	1.10	1.15
As of May 31:					
Loans to members	\$18,919,612	\$19,330,797	\$19,342,704	\$20,192,309	\$19,029,040
Allowance for loan losses	(143,326)	(161,177)	(592,764)	(622,960)	(514,906)
Assets	19,951,335	20,561,622	20,143,215	20,982,705	19,379,381
Short-term debt	4,493,434	5,842,924	4,606,361	4,867,864	6,327,453
Long-term debt (6)	12,151,967	11,293,249	12,054,497	12,720,055	10,173,587
Subordinated deferrable debt	186,440	186,440	311,440	311,440	311,440
Members' subordinated certificates (7)	1,722,744	1,801,212	1,810,715	1,740,054	1,406,779
Total equity	490,755	687,309	586,767	519,100	680,212
Guarantees	1,249,330	1,104,988	1,171,109	1,275,455	1,037,140
Leverage ratio (4)	42.20	30.52	35.33	41.88	29.01
Adjusted leverage ratio (5)	6.46	6.48	6.34	7.06	7.48
Debt-to-equity ratio (4)	39.65	28.92	33.33	39.42	27.49
Adjusted debt-to-equity ratio (5)	6.01	6.09	5.93	6.59	7.04

⁽¹⁾ Amount represents changes in the fair value of derivative instruments (forward value) along with realized gains and losses from cash settlements. Derivative cash settlements represent the net settlements received/paid on interest rate and cross currency exchange agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting. The

- derivative forward value represents the change in fair value on exchange agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting, as well as amortization related to the transition adjustment recorded as an other comprehensive loss on June 1, 2001.
- (2) Includes a one-time gain of \$23 million from the proceeds of a settlement with CoBank, ACB, for the year ended May 31, 2010.
- (3) For the years ended May 31, 2012, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the fixed-charge coverage ratio includes capitalized interest in total fixed charges, which is not included in our times interest earned ratio ("TIER") calculation. For the year ended prior to May 31, 2009, the fixed-charge coverage ratio is the same calculation as our TIER as we did not have any capitalized interest during that period. For the years ended May 31, 2012 and 2009, earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$149 million and \$74 million, respectively.
- (4) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures in Management's Discussion and Analysis for the GAAP calculations of these ratios.
- (5) Adjusted ratios include non-GAAP adjustments that we make to financial measures in assessing our financial performance. See *Non-GAAP Financial Measures* in *Management's Discussion and Analysis* for further explanation of these calculations and a reconciliation of the adjustments.
- (6) Excludes \$1,247 million, \$2,523 million, \$2,312 million, \$2,580 million, and \$3,177 million in long-term debt that comes due, matures and/or will be redeemed during fiscal years 2013, 2012, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively (see Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012).
- (7) Excludes \$17 million and \$12 million of members' subordinated certificates reported as short-term debt at May 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Selected Financial Data

(dollar amounts in thousands)	_	2012		2011
For the six months ended November 30:				_
Interest income	\$	481,715	\$	485,005
Net interest income		130,818		88,281
Derivative losses (1)		(28,358)		(159,324)
Income (loss) prior to income taxes		73,179		(116,024)
Net income (loss) (2)		72,727		(113,916)
Fixed-charge coverage ratio/TIER (2)(3)		1.21		_
Adjusted TIER (4)		1.19		1.11
As of November 30:				
Loans to members	\$1	9,105,207	\$1	18,321,643
Allowance for loan losses		(148,737)		(149,158)
Assets	2	0,610,394	1	19,792,338
Short-term debt		6,050,861		5,587,669
Long-term debt (5)	1	1,201,472	1	10,862,583
Subordinated deferrable debt		186,440		186,440
Members' subordinated certificates (6)		1,772,207		1,756,754
Total equity		528,156		526,244
Guarantees		1,127,668		1,065,908
Leverage ratio (3)		40.16		38.64
Adjusted leverage ratio (4)		6.43		6.32
Debt-to-equity ratio (3)		38.02		36.61
Adjusted debt-to-equity ratio (4)		6.04		5.93

- (1) Amount represents changes in the fair value of derivative instruments (forward value) along with realized gains and losses from cash settlements. Derivative cash settlements represent the net settlements received/paid on interest rate and cross currency exchange agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting. The derivative forward value represents the change in fair value on exchange agreements that do not qualify for hedge accounting, as well as amortization related to the transition adjustment recorded as an other comprehensive loss on June 1, 2001.
- (2) For the six months ended November 30, 2011, the fixed-charge coverage ratio includes capitalized interest in total fixed charges, which is not included in our times interest earned ratio ("TIER") calculation. For the six months ended November 30, 2012, the fixed-charge coverage ratio is the same calculation as our TIER as we did not have any capitalized interest during that period. For the six months ended November 30, 2011, earnings were insufficient to cover fixed charges by \$114 million.
- (3) See Non-GAAP Financial Measures in Management's Discussion and Analysis for the GAAP calculations of these ratios.
- (4) Adjusted ratios include non-GAAP adjustments that we make to financial measures in assessing our financial performance. See *Non-GAAP Financial Measures* in *Management's Discussion and Analysis* for further explanation of these calculations and a reconciliation of the adjustments.
- (5) Excludes \$2,589 million and \$2,448 million in long-term debt at November 30, 2012 and 2011, respectively, that comes due, matures and/or will be redeemed within one year (see Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements in the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended November 30, 2012).
- (6) Excludes \$15 million of members' subordinated certificates reported as short-term debt at November 30, 2012 and 2011.

THE EXCHANGE OFFER

Background and Purpose of the Exchange Offer

We issued the Original Bonds on October 16, 2012 in an exchange offer that was completed on October 16, 2012. The Original Bonds and cash were issued in exchange for a portion of our outstanding debt securities. The Original Bonds were issued in a private placement without being registered under the Securities Act in reliance on the exemption afforded by Section 4(a)(2) of the Securities Act, or, outside the United States, in compliance with Regulation S under the Securities Act.

In connection with the issuance of the Original Bonds, we entered into a registration rights agreement with the dealer manager of the private exchange offer. Under the registration rights agreement, we agreed to file a registration statement with the SEC relating to the Exchange Offer within 180 days of the issue date of the Original Bonds. We also agreed to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the registration statement to become effective with the SEC within 270 days of the issue date of the Original Bonds and to consummate this Exchange Offer within 60 days (or longer if required by United States federal securities laws) after the registration statement is declared effective. The registration rights agreement provides that we will be required to pay additional interest to the holders of the Original Bonds if we fail to comply with such filing, effectiveness and offer consummation requirements. See "—Registration Rights Agreement" below for more information on the additional interest we will owe if we do not complete the exchange offer within a specified timeline.

Under the registration rights agreement, we agreed to issue and exchange the Exchange Bonds for all Original Bonds validly tendered and not validly withdrawn before the expiration of the Exchange Offer. We are sending this prospectus, together with a letter of transmittal, to all the beneficial holders known to us. For each Original Bond validly tendered to us pursuant to the Exchange Offer and not validly withdrawn, the holder will receive an Exchange Bond having a principal amount equal to that of the tendered Original Bond. A copy of the registration rights agreement has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement which includes this prospectus. The registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, is intended to satisfy some of our obligations under the registration rights agreement.

The term "holder" with respect to the Exchange Offer means any person in whose name Original Bonds are registered on the trustee's books or any other person who has obtained a properly completed bond power from the registered holder.

Terms of the Exchange Offer

Based on the terms and conditions set forth in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal, we will accept any and all Original Bonds validly tendered and not validly withdrawn on or before the expiration date.

On the settlement date, we will issue \$1,000 principal amount of Exchange Bonds in exchange for each \$1,000 principal amount of outstanding Original Bonds validly tendered pursuant to the Exchange Offer and not validly withdrawn on or before the expiration date. Holders may tender some or all of their Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer. However, Original Bonds may be tendered only in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof.

The form and terms of the Exchange Bonds are the same as the form and terms of the Original Bonds except that:

- the Exchange Bonds will be registered under the Securities Act and, therefore, the Exchange Bonds will not bear legends restricting the transfer of the Exchange Bonds; and
- except in certain limited circumstances, holders of the Exchange Bonds will not be entitled to any
 further registration rights under the registration rights agreement or to the benefit of the additional
 interest provisions of the registration rights agreement.

The Exchange Bonds will evidence the same indebtedness as the Original Bonds, which they will replace, and will be issued under, and be entitled to the benefits of, the same indenture that governs the Original Bonds. As a result, both the Exchange Bonds and the Original Bonds will be treated as a single series of debt securities under the indenture. The Exchange Offer does not depend on any minimum aggregate principal amount of Original Bonds being tendered for exchange.

As of the date of this prospectus, \$379,372,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Original Bonds is outstanding, registered in the names and denominations as set forth in the security register for the Original Bonds. There will be no fixed record date for determining holders of the Original Bonds entitled to participate in this Exchange Offer and all holders of Original Bonds may tender their Original Bonds.

We intend to conduct the Exchange Offer in accordance with the provisions of the registration rights agreement and the applicable requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, referred to herein as the Exchange Act, and the related rules and regulations of the SEC. Original Bonds that are not tendered for exchange in the Exchange Offer will remain outstanding and interest on these bonds will continue to accrue at a rate equal to 4.023% per annum.

If you validly tender Original Bonds in the Exchange Offer, you will not be required to pay brokerage commissions or fees. In addition, subject to the instructions in the letter of transmittal, you will not have to pay transfer taxes for the exchange of Original Bonds. We will pay all charges and expenses in connection with the Exchange Offer, other than certain applicable taxes described under "—Fees and Expenses."

Resale of the Exchange Bonds

We believe that you will be allowed to resell the Exchange Bonds to the public without registration under the Securities Act, and without delivering a prospectus that satisfies the requirements of Section 10 of the Securities Act, if you can make the representations set forth below under "—Proper Execution and Delivery of the Letter of Transmittal." However, if you intend to participate in a distribution of Exchange Bonds, are a broker-dealer that acquired the Original Bonds directly from us for your own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds and not as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities or are an "affiliate" of us as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act, you will not be eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer and you must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with the resale of your bonds. See "—Registration Rights Agreement."

We base our view on interpretations by the staff of the SEC in no-action letters issued to other issuers relating to exchange offers like ours. However, we have not asked the SEC to consider this particular Exchange Offer in the context of a no-action letter. Therefore, you cannot be sure that the SEC will treat it in the same way it has treated other exchange offers in the past.

A broker-dealer that has acquired Original Bonds as a result of market-making or other trading activities has to deliver a prospectus in order to resell any Exchange Bonds it receives for its own account in the Exchange Offer. This prospectus may be used by such broker-dealer to resell any of its Exchange Bonds. We have agreed in the registration rights agreement to send this prospectus to any broker-dealer that requests copies. See "Plan of Distribution" for more information regarding broker-dealers.

The Exchange Offer is not being made to, nor will we accept tenders for exchange from, holders of Original Bonds in any jurisdiction in which this Exchange Offer or the acceptance of the Exchange Offer would not be in compliance with the securities or blue sky laws.

The Exchange Offer is not subject to any federal or state regulatory requirements other than securities laws.

Expiration Date; Extensions; Amendments

For purposes of the Exchange Offer, the term "expiration date" means 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless we extend the Exchange Offer, in which case the expiration date is the latest date and time to which we extend the Exchange Offer.

Subject to applicable law, we reserve the right, in our absolute discretion, by giving oral or written notice to the exchange agent, to:

- extend the Exchange Offer;
- terminate the Exchange Offer if a condition to our obligation to exchange Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds is not satisfied or waived on or prior to the expiration date; and
- amend the Exchange Offer.

If the Exchange Offer is amended in a manner that we determine constitutes a material change, we will extend the period of time during which the Exchange Offer is open if necessary so that at least five business days remain in the offering period following notice of the material change. Any change in the consideration offered to holders of Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer will be paid to all holders whose Original Bonds have been previously tendered and not validly withdrawn.

We will promptly announce any extension, amendment or termination of the Exchange Offer by issuing a press release. We will announce any extension of the expiration date no later than 9:00 a.m., New York City time, on the first business day after the previously scheduled expiration date. We have no other obligation to publish, advertise or otherwise communicate any information about any extension, amendment or termination.

Settlement Date

We will deliver the Exchange Bonds with respect to the Exchange Offer on the "settlement date," which will be the fifth business day following the expiration date of the Exchange Offer or as soon as practicable thereafter. We will not be obligated to deliver Exchange Bonds unless the Exchange Offer is consummated.

Conditions of the Exchange Offer

Notwithstanding any other term of the Exchange Offer, or any extension of the Exchange Offer, we may terminate the Exchange Offer before acceptance of the Original Bonds if in our reasonable judgment:

- the Exchange Offer would violate applicable law or any applicable interpretation of the staff of the SEC; or
- any action or proceeding has been instituted or threatened in any court or by any governmental agency
 that might materially impair our ability to proceed with or complete the Exchange Offer or, in any such
 action or proceeding, any material adverse development has occurred with respect to us.

If we, in our reasonable discretion, determine that any of the above conditions is not satisfied, we may:

- terminate the Exchange Offer and return all tendered Original Bonds to the tendering holders;
- extend the Exchange Offer and retain all Original Bonds tendered on or before the expiration date, subject to the holders' right to withdraw the tender of the Original Bonds; or
- waive any unsatisfied conditions regarding the Exchange Offer and accept all properly tendered
 Original Bonds that have not been withdrawn. If this waiver constitutes a material change to the
 Exchange Offer, we will promptly disclose the waiver, and we will extend the exchange offer for a
 period of time that we will determine, depending upon the significance of the waiver and the manner of
 disclosure to the holders of the Original Bonds, if the Exchange Offer would have otherwise expired.

All conditions to the Exchange Offer will be satisfied or waived prior to the expiration of the Exchange Offer. We will not waive any condition of the Exchange Offer with respect to any bondholder unless we waive such condition for all bondholders.

If we fail to consummate the Exchange Offer or file, have declared effective or keep effective a shelf registration statement within time periods specified by the registration rights agreement, we may be required to pay additional interest in respect of the bonds. See "—Registration Rights Agreement."

Consequences of Failure to Exchange

Original Bonds that are not exchanged will remain "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) of the Securities Act. Accordingly, they may not be offered, sold, pledged or otherwise transferred except:

- fo us:
- inside the United States to a qualified institutional buyer in compliance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act;
- inside the United States to an institutional accredited investor that, before the transfer, furnishes to the trustee a signed letter containing certain representations and agreements relating to the restrictions on transfer of the Original Bonds, the form of which you can obtain from the trustee and an opinion of counsel acceptable to us and the trustee that the transfer complies with the Securities Act;
- outside the United States in compliance with Rule 904 under the Securities Act;
- pursuant to the exemption from registration provided by Rule 144 under the Securities Act, if available;
- in accordance with another exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act and based upon an opinion of counsel, if we so request; or
- pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act.

The liquidity of the Original Bonds could be adversely affected by the Exchange Offer. See "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to the Exchange Offer." Following consummation of the Exchange Offer, we will not be required to register under the Securities Act any Original Bonds that remain outstanding except in the limited circumstances in which we are obligated to file a shelf registration statement for certain holders of Original Bonds not eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer pursuant to the registration rights agreement.

Effect of Tender

Any tender by a holder, and our subsequent acceptance of that tender, of Original Bonds will constitute a binding agreement between that holder and us upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Exchange Offer described in this prospectus and in the letter of transmittal. The participation in the Exchange Offer by a tendering holder of the Original Bonds will constitute the agreement by that holder to deliver good and unencumbered title to the Original Bonds being tendered, free and clear of all security interests, liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, conditional sale agreements, or other obligations relating to their sale or transfer, and not subject to any adverse claim when we accept the Original Bonds.

Absence of Dissenters' Rights

Holders of the Original Bonds do not have any appraisal or dissenters' rights in connection with the Exchange Offer.

Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds

If you wish to participate in the Exchange Offer and your Original Bonds are held by a custodial entity such as a bank, broker, dealer, trust company or other nominee, you must instruct that custodial entity to tender your Original Bonds on your behalf pursuant to the procedures of that custodial entity.

To participate in the exchange offer, you must either:

- complete, sign and date a letter of transmittal, or a facsimile thereof, in accordance with the
 instructions in the letter of transmittal, including guaranteeing the signatures to the letter of transmittal,
 if required, and mail or otherwise deliver the letter of transmittal or a facsimile thereof, together with
 the certificates representing your Original Bonds specified in the letter of transmittal, to the exchange
 agent at the address listed in the letter of transmittal, for receipt on or prior to the expiration date; or
- comply with The Depository Trust Company's, referred to herein as DTC, Automated Tender Offer Program, referred to herein as ATOP, procedures for book-entry transfer described below on or prior to the expiration date.

The exchange agent and DTC have confirmed that the Exchange Offer is eligible for ATOP with respect to book-entry bonds held through DTC. The letter of transmittal, or a facsimile thereof, with any required signature guarantees, or, in the case of book-entry transfer, an agent's message in lieu of the letter of transmittal, and any other required documents, must be transmitted to and received by the exchange agent on or prior to the expiration date at its address listed in the letter of transmittal. Original Bonds will not be deemed to have been tendered until the letter of transmittal and signature guarantees, if any, or agent's message, is received by the exchange agent.

The method of delivery of Original Bonds, the letter of transmittal and all other required documents to the exchange agent is at the election and risk of the holder. Holders should use an overnight or hand delivery service, properly insured. In all cases, sufficient time should be allowed to assure delivery to and receipt by the exchange agent on or prior to the expiration date. We have not provided guaranteed delivery procedures in conjunction with the Exchange Offer or under this prospectus. **Do not send the letter of transmittal or any Original Bonds to anyone other than the exchange agent.**

If you are tendering your Original Bonds in exchange for Exchange Bonds and anticipate delivering your letter of transmittal and other documents other than through DTC, we urge you to contact promptly a bank, broker or other intermediary that has the capability to hold bonds custodially through DTC to arrange for receipt of any Exchange Bonds to be delivered pursuant to the Exchange Offer and to obtain the information necessary to provide the required DTC participant with account information in the letter of transmittal.

If you are a beneficial owner which holds Original Bonds through Euroclear or Clearstream and wish to tender your Original Bonds, you must instruct Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, to block the account in respect of the tendered Original Bonds in accordance with the procedures established by Euroclear or Clearstream. You are encouraged to contact Euroclear and Clearstream directly to ascertain their procedure for tendering Original Bonds.

Book-Entry Delivery Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds Held with DTC

If you wish to tender Original Bonds held on your behalf by a nominee with DTC, you must:

- inform your nominee of your interest in tendering your Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer;
- instruct your nominee to tender all Original Bonds you wish to be tendered in the Exchange Offer into the exchange agent's account at DTC on or before the expiration date.

Any financial institution that is a nominee in DTC, including Euroclear and Clearstream, must tender Original Bonds by effecting a book-entry transfer of Original Bonds to be tendered in the Exchange Offer into the account of the exchange agent at DTC by electronically transmitting its acceptance of the Exchange Offer through the ATOP procedures for transfer. DTC will then verify the acceptance, execute a book-entry delivery to the exchange agent's account at DTC and send an agent's message to the exchange agent. An "agent's message" is a message, transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the exchange agent and forming part of a book-entry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from an organization that participates in DTC (a "participant"), tendering Original Bonds that the participant has received and agrees to be

bound by the terms of the letter of transmittal and that we may enforce the agreement against the participant. A letter of transmittal need not accompany tenders effected through ATOP.

Proper Execution and Delivery of the Letter of Transmittal

If you wish to participate in the Exchange Offer, delivery of your Original Bonds, signature guarantees and other required documents are your responsibility. Delivery is not complete until the required items are actually received by the exchange agent. If you mail these items, we recommend that you (1) use registered mail with return receipt requested, properly insured, and (2) mail the required items sufficiently in advance of the expiration date to allow sufficient time to ensure timely delivery.

Signatures on a letter of transmittal or notice of withdrawal described under "—Withdrawal of Tenders," as the case may be, must be guaranteed by an eligible institution unless the Original Bonds tendered pursuant to the letter of transmittal:

- are tendered by a registered holder of the Original Bonds who has not completed either of the boxes titled "Special Issuance Instructions" or "Special Delivery Instructions" on the letter of transmittal, or
- are tendered for the account of an eligible institution.

An "eligible institution" is one of the following firms or other entities identified in Rule 17Ad-15 under the Exchange Act (as the terms are used in Rule 17Ad-15):

- a bank;
- a broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, municipal securities broker, government securities dealer or government securities broker;
- a credit union;
- a national securities exchange, registered securities association or clearing agency; or
- a savings institution that is a participant in a Securities Transfer Association recognized program.

If signatures on a letter of transmittal or notice of withdrawal are required to be guaranteed, that guarantee must be made by an eligible institution.

If the letter of transmittal is signed by the holders of Original Bonds tendered thereby, the signatures must correspond with the names as written on the face of the Original Bonds without any change whatsoever. If any of the Original Bonds tendered thereby are held by two or more holders, each holder must sign the letter of transmittal. If any of the Original Bonds tendered thereby are registered in different names on different Original Bonds, it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate letters of transmittal, and any accompanying documents, as there are different registrations of certificates.

If Original Bonds that are not tendered for exchange pursuant to the Exchange Offer are to be returned to a person other than the tendering holder, certificates for those Original Bonds must be endorsed or accompanied by an appropriate separate bond power, in either case signed exactly as the name of the registered owner appears on the certificates for the Original Bonds, with the signatures on the certificates or instruments of separate bond power guaranteed by an eligible institution.

If the letter of transmittal is signed by a person other than the holder of any Original Bonds listed in the letter of transmittal, certificates for those Original Bonds must be properly endorsed or accompanied by a properly completed appropriate bond power, signed by the holder exactly as the holder's name appears on the certificates for the Original Bonds. If the letter of transmittal or any Original Bonds, bond powers or other instruments of transfer are signed by trustees, executors, administrators, guardians, attorneys-in-fact, officers of corporations or others acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, those persons should so indicate when signing, and, unless waived by us, evidence satisfactory to us of their authority to so act must be submitted with the letter of transmittal.

If the Exchange Bonds or unexchanged Original Bonds are to be delivered to an address other than that of the registered holder appearing on the security register for the Original Bonds, an eligible institution must guarantee the signature on the letter of transmittal.

No alternative, conditional, irregular or contingent tenders will be accepted. By executing the letter of transmittal, or facsimile thereof, the tendering holders of Original Bonds waive any right to receive any notice of the acceptance for exchange of their Original Bonds. Tendering holders should indicate in the applicable box in the letter of transmittal the name and address to which payments and/or substitute certificates evidencing Original Bonds for amounts not tendered or not exchanged are to be issued or sent, if different from the name and address of the person signing the letter of transmittal. If those instructions are not given, Original Bonds not tendered or exchanged will be returned to the tendering holder.

All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility, including time of receipt, and acceptance and withdrawal of tendered Original Bonds will be determined by us in our absolute discretion, which determination will be final and binding. We reserve the absolute right to reject any and all tendered Original Bonds determined by us not to be in proper form or not to be tendered properly or any tendered Original Bonds our acceptance of which would, in the opinion of our counsel, be unlawful. We also reserve the right to waive, in our absolute discretion, any defects, irregularities or conditions of tender as to particular Original Bonds, whether or not waived in the case of other Original Bonds. Our interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offer, including the terms and instructions in the letter of transmittal, will be final and binding on all parties. Unless waived, any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of Original Bonds must be cured within the time we determine. Although we intend to notify holders of defects or irregularities with respect to tenders of Original Bonds, neither we, the exchange agent nor any other person will be under any duty to give that notification or shall incur any liability for failure to give that notification. Tenders of Original Bonds will not be deemed to have been made until any defects or irregularities therein have been cured or waived.

Any holder whose Original Bonds have been mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed will be responsible for obtaining replacement securities or for arranging for indemnification with the trustee of the Original Bonds. Holders may contact the exchange agent for assistance with these matters.

Pursuant to the letter of transmittal or, in the case of book-entry transfer, an agent's message in lieu of the letter of transmittal, if you elect to tender Original Bonds in exchange for Exchange Bonds, you must exchange, assign, and transfer the Original Bonds to us and irrevocably constitute and appoint the exchange agent as your true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact with respect to the tendered Original Bonds, with full power of substitution, among other things, to deliver the tendered Original Bonds to us and cause ownership of the Original Bonds to be transferred to us. By executing the letter of transmittal, you make the representations, warranties and acknowledgments set forth below to us. By executing the letter of transmittal you also promise, on our request, to execute and deliver any additional documents that we consider necessary to complete the exchange of Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds as described in the letter of transmittal.

By tendering, each holder represents, warrants and acknowledges to us, among other things:

- that the holder has full power and authority to tender, exchange, assign, and transfer the Original Bonds tendered;
- that we will acquire good and unencumbered title to the Original Bonds being tendered, free and clear
 of all security interests, liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, conditional sale agreements, or other
 obligations relating to their sale or transfer, and not subject to any adverse claim when we accept the
 Original Bonds;
- that the holder is acquiring the Exchange Bonds in the ordinary course of its business;
- that the holder has no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate and is not engaged and does not intend to engage in the distribution of the Exchange Bonds;
- that the holder is not an "affiliate," as defined in Rule 405 under the Securities Act, of us;

- if the holder is a broker-dealer, the holder acquired the Original Bonds as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities and not directly from us for its own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds; and
- that if the holder is a broker-dealer and it will receive Exchange Bonds for its own account in exchange for Original Bonds that it acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the Exchange Bonds.

If you are a broker-dealer that acquired the Original Bonds directly from us for your own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds and not as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities or you cannot otherwise make any of the representations set forth above, you will not be eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer, you should not rely on the interpretations of the staff of the SEC in connection with the Exchange Offer and you must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with the resale of your bonds.

Participation in the Exchange Offer is voluntary. You are urged to consult your financial and tax advisors in deciding whether to participate in the Exchange Offer.

Withdrawal of Tenders of Original Bonds

You may withdraw your tender of Original Bonds at any time on or before the expiration date.

To withdraw Original Bonds tendered in the Exchange Offer, the exchange agent must receive a written notice of withdrawal at its address set forth below on or before the expiration date. Any notice of withdrawal must:

- specify the name of the person having deposited the Original Bonds to be withdrawn;
- identify the Original Bonds to be withdrawn, including the certificate number or numbers, if applicable, and principal amount of the Original Bonds;
- contain a statement that the holder is withdrawing the election to have the Original Bonds exchanged;
- specify the name in which any Original Bonds are to be registered, if different from that of the registered holder of the Original Bonds; and
- be signed by the holder in the same manner as the original signature on the letter of transmittal used to tender the Original Bonds.

The signature on any notice of withdrawal must be guaranteed by an eligible institution, unless the Original Bonds have been tendered by a registered holder of the Original Bonds who has not completed either of the boxes titled "Special Issuance Instructions" or "Special Delivery Instructions" on the letter of transmittal or have been tendered for the account of an eligible institution.

We will make the final determination on all questions regarding the validity, form, eligibility, including time of receipt of notices of withdrawal, and our determination will be final and binding on all parties. Any Original Bonds validly withdrawn will be deemed not to have been validly tendered for purposes of the Exchange Offer and no Exchange Bonds will be issued in exchange unless the Original Bonds so withdrawn are validly tendered again. Properly withdrawn Original Bonds may be tendered again by following one of the procedures described above under "—Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds" at any time on or before the expiration date.

Acceptance of Original Bonds for Exchange; Delivery of Exchange Bonds

Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Exchange Offer (including if the Exchange Offer is extended or amended, the terms and conditions of any such extension or amendment) and applicable law, we will accept for exchange, and thereby exchange, all Original Bonds validly tendered and not withdrawn on or prior to the expiration date. For the purposes of the Exchange Offer, we will be deemed to have accepted for exchange

validly tendered Original Bonds when, as and if we have given written notice or oral notice (immediately confirmed in writing) of acceptance to the exchange agent.

The exchange agent will act as agent for the tendering holders of Original Bonds for the purposes of receiving Exchange Bonds from us and causing the Original Bonds to be assigned, transferred and exchanged. Upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Exchange Offer (including if the Exchange Offer is extended or amended, the terms and conditions of any such extension or amendment) and applicable law, delivery of Exchange Bonds to be issued in exchange for accepted Original Bonds will be made by the exchange agent promptly after acceptance of the tendered Original Bonds. Original Bonds not accepted for exchange will be returned without expense to the tendering holders, or, in the case of Original Bonds tendered by book-entry transfer, the non-exchanged Original Bonds will be credited to an account maintained with the book-entry transfer facility promptly following the expiration date. If we terminate the Exchange Offer before the expiration date, these non-exchanged Original Bonds will be credited to the applicable exchange agent's account promptly after the Exchange Offer is terminated.

Registration Rights Agreement

The following description summarizes the material provisions of the registration rights agreement. The following summary does not purport to be complete and is subject to, and is qualified in its entirety by reference to, all the provisions of the registration rights agreement. A copy of the registration rights agreement has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement which includes this prospectus. The registration statement, of which this prospectus is a part, is intended to satisfy some of our obligations under the registration rights agreement.

On October 16, 2012, we and the dealer manager of the private exchange offer entered into the registration rights agreement. Pursuant to the registration rights agreement, we agreed to file with the SEC a registration statement on the appropriate form under the Securities Act, referred to herein as the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, through which we agreed to conduct a registered exchange offer, referred to herein as the Registered Exchange Offer, whereby holders of Original Bonds could, subject to certain conditions and exceptions, exchange their Original Bonds for a like aggregate principal amount of substantially identical bonds (except that certain additional interest provisions, restrictions on transfers and restrictive legends would not be applicable to such bonds), referred to herein as the Exchange Bonds, issued by us. Upon the effectiveness of the Exchange Offer Registration Statement, we will offer to the holders of Transfer Restricted Securities (as defined below) pursuant to the Registered Exchange Offer who are able to make certain representations the opportunity to exchange their Transfer Restricted Securities for Exchange Bonds.

If:

(1) we are not

- required to file the Exchange Offer Registration Statement because the Registered Exchange Offer is not permitted by applicable law or SEC policy; or
- permitted to consummate the Registered Exchange Offer because the Registered Exchange Offer is not permitted by applicable law or SEC policy; or

(2) any holder of Transfer Restricted Securities notifies us prior to the 20th business day following consummation of the Registered Exchange Offer that:

- it is prohibited by law or SEC policy from participating in the Registered Exchange Offer;
- it may not resell the Exchange Bonds acquired by it in the Registered Exchange Offer to the public without delivering a prospectus and the prospectus contained in the Exchange Offer Registration Statement is not appropriate or available for such resales; or
- it is a broker-dealer and owns Original Bonds acquired directly from us or an affiliate of ours,

we will file with the SEC a shelf registration statement on the appropriate form, referred to herein as the Shelf Registration Statement, to cover resales of the Transfer Restricted Securities by the holders of the Transfer Restricted Securities who satisfy certain conditions relating to the provision of information in connection with the Shelf Registration Statement.

"Transfer Restricted Securities" means each Original Bond until the earliest to occur of:

- the date on which such Original Bond has been exchanged by a person other than a broker-dealer for an Exchange Bond in the Registered Exchange Offer;
- following the exchange by a broker-dealer in the Registered Exchange Offer of an Original Bond for an
 Exchange Bond, the date on which such Exchange Bond is sold to a purchaser who receives from such
 broker-dealer on or prior to the date of such sale a copy of the prospectus contained in the Exchange
 Offer Registration Statement;
- the date on which such Original Bond has been effectively registered under the Securities Act and disposed of in accordance with the Shelf Registration Statement; or
- the date on which such Original Bond is distributed to the public pursuant to Rule 144 under the Securities Act.

The registration rights agreement provides that:

- we will file an Exchange Offer Registration Statement with the SEC within 180 days of the issue date of the Original Bonds and use all commercially reasonable efforts to have the Exchange Offer Registration Statement declared effective by the SEC on or prior to 270 days after the issue date of the Original Bonds (unless the Exchange Offer Registration Statement (including documents incorporated by reference) is reviewed by the SEC, in which case within 330 calendar days after the issue date of the Original Bonds);
- unless the Registered Exchange Offer would not be permitted by applicable law or SEC policy, we will:
 - (a) commence the Registered Exchange Offer; and
 - (b) use all commercially reasonable efforts to issue on or prior to 60 days, or longer, if required by the federal securities laws, after the date on which the Exchange Offer Registration Statement was declared effective by the SEC, Exchange Bonds in exchange for all Original Bonds tendered prior thereto in the Registered Exchange Offer; and
- if obligated to file the Shelf Registration Statement, we will use all commercially reasonable efforts to file the Shelf Registration Statement with the SEC on or prior to 60 days after such filing obligation arises and to cause the Shelf Registration Statement to become effective under the Securities Act on or prior to 180 days after such obligation arises (unless the Shelf Registration Statement (including documents incorporated by reference) is reviewed by the SEC, in which case within 270 calendar days after the Settlement Date).

If

- (1) we fail to file any of the registration statements required by the registration rights agreement on or before the date specified for such filing;
- (2) any of such registration statements is not declared effective by the SEC or has not become effective under the Securities Act on or prior to the date specified for such effectiveness, referred to herein as the Effectiveness Target Date;
- (3) we fail to consummate the Registered Exchange Offer within 60 days of the Effectiveness Target Date with respect to the Exchange Offer Registration Statement; or

(4) the Shelf Registration Statement or the Exchange Offer Registration Statement is declared or becomes effective but thereafter ceases to be effective or usable in connection with resales of Transfer Restricted Securities during the periods specified in the registration rights agreement (each such event referred to in clauses (1) through (4) above, referred to herein as a Registration Default),

then we have agreed to pay additional interest to each holder of Transfer Restricted Securities.

With respect to the first 90-day period immediately following the occurrence of the first Registration Default, additional interest will be paid in an amount equal to 0.25% per annum of the principal amount of Transfer Restricted Securities. The amount of the additional interest will increase by an additional 0.25% per annum with respect to each subsequent 90-day period until all Registration Defaults have been cured, with a maximum amount of additional interest for all Registration Defaults of 0.50% per annum of the principal amount of Transfer Restricted Securities.

All accrued additional interest will be paid by us on the next scheduled interest payment date to DTC or its nominee by wire transfer of immediately available funds or by federal funds check and to holders of definitive registered bonds by wire transfer to the accounts specified by them or by mailing checks to their registered addresses if no such accounts have been specified.

Following the cure of all Registration Defaults, the accrual of additional interest will cease.

Holders of Original Bonds will be required to make certain representations to us (as described in the registration rights agreement) in order to participate in the Registered Exchange Offer and will be required to deliver certain information to be used in connection with the Shelf Registration Statement in order to have their Original Bonds included in the Shelf Registration Statement. By including Transfer Restricted Securities in the Shelf Registration Statement, a holder will be deemed to have agreed to indemnify us against certain losses arising out of information furnished by such holder in writing for inclusion in any Shelf Registration Statement. Holders of Original Bonds will also be required to suspend their use of the prospectus included in the Shelf Registration Statement under certain circumstances upon receipt of written notice to that effect from us.

Exchange Agent

D.F. King & Co., Inc. has been appointed as the exchange agent for the Exchange Offer. Letters of transmittal and all correspondence in connection with the Exchange Offer should be sent or delivered by each holder of Original Bonds, or a beneficial owner's commercial bank, broker, dealer, trust company or other nominee, to the exchange agent at the address and telephone number set forth below:

By Mail, By Hand and Overnight Courier:

48 Wall Street, 22nd Floor New York, NY 10005 Attention: Elton Bagley

By Facsimile (for eligible institutions only): (212) 809-8838

Confirmation Call: (212) 493-6996

Banks and Brokers: (212) 493-6996 Toll Free: (800) 659-5550

Delivery of the letter of transmittal to an address other than as set forth above or transmission of such letter of transmittal via facsimile other than as set forth above does not constitute a valid delivery of the letter of transmittal.

Fees and Expenses

We will pay all expenses incurred in connection with the performance of our obligations in the Exchange Offer, including registration fees, fees and expenses of the exchange agent and printing costs, among others.

We will also bear the expenses of soliciting tenders. The principal solicitation is being made by mail; however, additional solicitation may be made by facsimile, telephone, or in person by our officers and regular employees or by officers and employees of our affiliates. No additional compensation will be paid to any officers and employees who engage in soliciting tenders.

We have not retained any dealer-manager or other soliciting agent for the Exchange Offer and will not make any payments to brokers, dealers, or others soliciting acceptance of the Exchange Offer. We will, however, pay the exchange agent reasonable and customary fees for its services and will reimburse it for related, reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. We may also reimburse brokerage houses and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses they incur in forwarding copies of this prospectus, the letter of transmittal and related documents.

We will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the exchange of Original Bonds. If, however, Exchange Bonds, or Original Bonds for principal amounts not tendered or accepted for exchange, are to be delivered to, or are to be issued in the name of, any person other than the registered holder of the Original Bonds tendered, or if a transfer tax is imposed for any reason other than the exchange, then the amount of any transfer taxes will be payable by the person tendering the bonds. If you do not submit satisfactory evidence of payment of those taxes or exemption from payment of those taxes with the letter of transmittal, the amount of those transfer taxes will be billed directly to you.

Accounting Treatment

The Exchange Bonds will be recorded at the same carrying value as the Original Bonds as reflected in our accounting records on the date of the exchange. Accordingly, we will not recognize any gain or loss for accounting purposes upon the completion of the Exchange Offer, except for the recognition of certain fees and expenses incurred in connection with the Exchange Offer as stated under "—Fees and Expenses."

DESCRIPTION OF THE EXCHANGE BONDS

The following description is a summary of the Indenture (as defined below) and the Exchange Bonds. Because this section is a summary, it does not describe every aspect of the Indenture or Exchange Bonds. This summary is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to all the provisions of the Indenture, including definitions of certain terms used in the Indenture. You should read the Indenture and the Exchange Bonds because they contain additional information and they, and not this description, define your rights as a holder of the Exchange Bonds. The terms of the Exchange Bonds include those stated in the Indenture and those made part of the Indenture by reference to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, referred to herein as the Trust Indenture Act. A copy of the Indenture has been filed with the SEC. See "Where You Can Find More Information" for more information on how to obtain a copy. For purposes of this "Description of the Exchange Bonds," references to "CFC," "we," "our" or "us" include only National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation and do not include RTFC or NCSC.

General

The Exchange Bonds will be issued under an indenture dated as of October 25, 2007, referred to herein as the Indenture, between CFC and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee, referred to herein as the Trustee. The Exchange Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and in integral multiples of \$1,000 thereof.

The Exchange Bonds will mature on November 1, 2032, unless earlier redeemed.

The Exchange Bonds will bear interest from October 16, 2012, and interest on the Exchange Bonds will be payable on November 1 and May 1 of each year, commencing May 1, 2013, to the persons in whose names such Exchange Bonds are registered at the close of business on the fifteenth calendar day preceding the payment date, or if not a business day, the next succeeding business day. Interest on the bonds will accrue from and including the date of issue or from and including the last date in respect of which interest has been paid, as the case may be, to, but excluding, the relevant interest payment date, date of redemption or the date of maturity, as the case may be. Interest on the bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of twelve 30-day months.

If any of the interest payment dates or the maturity date falls on a day that is not a business day, CFC will postpone the payment of interest or principal to the next succeeding business day, but the payment made on such dates will be treated as being made on the date payment was first due and the holders of the bonds will not be entitled to any further interest or other payments with respect to such postponements. The term "business day" means each Monday, Tuesday, Wednesday, Thursday and Friday which is not a day on which banking institutions in the Borough of Manhattan, City and State of New York are authorized by law to close.

"Make-Whole" Redemption of the Bonds

We may redeem the Exchange Bonds at any time prior to May 1, 2032 (which is the date that is six months prior to the maturity of the Exchange Bonds), in whole or in part, at a "make-whole" redemption price equal to the greater of (1) 100% of the principal amount being redeemed or (2) the sum of the present value of the remaining scheduled payments of the principal and interest (other than accrued interest) on the Exchange Bonds being redeemed, discounted to the redemption date on a semi-annual basis (assuming a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day months) at the Treasury Rate plus 20 basis points for the Exchange Bonds plus in each of (1) and (2) above, accrued interest to the redemption date.

At any time on or after May 1, 2032 (which is the date that is six months prior to the maturity of the Exchange Bonds), we may redeem the Exchange Bonds, at our option, in whole or in part, at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the Exchange Bonds then outstanding to be redeemed, plus accrued and unpaid interest thereon to the date of redemption.

"Treasury Rate" means, for any redemption date, the rate per annum equal to the semi-annual equivalent yield to maturity of the Comparable Treasury Issue, assuming a price for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed as a percentage of its principal amount) equal to the Comparable Treasury Price for the redemption date

"Comparable Treasury Issue" means the United States Treasury security selected by an Independent Investment Banker as having a maturity comparable to the remaining term of the Exchange Bonds being redeemed that would be utilized, at the time of selection and in accordance with customary financial practice, in pricing new issues of corporate debt securities of comparable maturity to the remaining term of such bonds.

"Independent Investment Banker" means one of the Reference Treasury Dealers appointed by the Trustee after consultation with CFC.

"Comparable Treasury Price" means with respect to any redemption date, (A) the average of the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for the redemption date, after excluding the highest and lowest Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations for that redemption date, or (B) if we obtain fewer than four Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations, the average of all the Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations obtained.

"Reference Treasury Dealer Quotations" means, for each Reference Treasury Dealer and any redemption date, the average, as determined by the Trustee, of the bid and ask prices for the Comparable Treasury Issue (expressed in each case as a percentage of its principal amount) quoted in writing to the Trustee by the Reference Treasury Dealer at 5:00 p.m. New York City time on the third business day preceding the redemption date for the bonds being redeemed.

"Reference Treasury Dealer" means (1) J.P. Morgan Securities LLC and its successor; provided, however, that if J.P. Morgan Securities LLC ceases to be a primary U.S. Government securities dealer in the United States, CFC will appoint another primary U.S. Government securities dealer of its own selection as a substitute and (2) any other U.S. Government securities dealers selected by CFC, provided that there shall not be less than three such dealers (including J.P. Morgan Securities LLC or its successor) with respect to any redemption date.

If CFC elects to redeem less than all of the Exchange Bonds, and such bonds are at the time represented by a global security, then the depositary will select by lot the particular interest to be redeemed. If CFC elects to redeem less than all of the Exchange Bonds, and such bonds are not represented by a global security, then the Trustee will select the particular Exchange Bonds to be redeemed in a manner it deems appropriate and fair.

Notice of any redemption will be mailed at least 30 days but not more than 60 days before the date of redemption to each holder of the Exchange Bonds to be redeemed. Unless CFC defaults in payment of the redemption price, on and after the date of redemption, interest will cease to accrue on such bonds or the portions called for redemption.

Ranking

Except as to security, the Exchange Bonds will rank on a parity with all other senior obligations of CFC, other than debt with statutory priority.

Security

The Exchange Bonds will be secured under the Indenture, equally with all existing collateral trust bonds and collateral trust bonds which may be subsequently issued under the Indenture, by the pledge with the Trustee of eligible collateral having an "allowable amount" (as defined in the Indenture) at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of Exchange Bonds outstanding. The Indenture provides that eligible collateral will consist of eligible mortgage notes of distribution system members, cash and permitted investments. The allowable amount of cash is 100% thereof, the allowable amount of mortgage notes is the amount advanced and not repaid and the

allowable amount of permitted investments is their cost to CFC (exclusive of accrued interest and brokerage commission). However, the allowable amount of permitted investments traded on a national securities exchange or in any over-the-counter market is their fair market value as determined by CFC. For purposes of the Indenture and as used in describing the Exchange Bonds herein, a "member" is any person which is a member of CFC, and a "distribution system member" is a member 50% or more of whose gross operating revenues are derived from sales of electricity to end users, as determined as of the end of the last completed calendar year. On November 30, 2012, there was a total of \$6,007 million of eligible mortgage notes pledged under the Indenture with the Trustee, against which \$4,979 million of collateral trust bonds (not including the Exchange Bonds offered hereby) had been issued. Under the mortgages held as collateral, CFC generally has a lien on all assets and future revenues of the subject distribution system. CFC discloses the principal amount of collateral on deposit and aggregate principal amount of bonds outstanding in each of its Form 10-Q and Form 10-K filings with the SEC. Any cash held by the Trustee as collateral shall upon CFC's request be invested until required to be paid out under the provisions of the Indenture.

The following are permitted investments under the Indenture:

- certain obligations of or guaranteed by the United States and of agencies of the United States for which the full faith and credit of the obligor shall be pledged and which mature (except in the case of obligations guaranteed by the RUS) not more than two years after purchase,
- certificates of deposit or time deposits of any bank or trust company having at least \$500,000,000 of capital and surplus and maturing not more than two years after purchase,
- commercial paper of bank holding companies or other corporate issuers other than CFC generally rated in the highest category by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating agencies and maturing not more than one year after purchase, and
- obligations of any state or municipality, or subdivision or agency of either thereof, which shall mature not more than two years after the purchase thereof and are rated AA (or equivalent) or better by at least two nationally recognized statistical rating organizations or having a comparable rating in the event of any future change in the rating system of such agencies.

As a condition to the authentication and delivery of collateral trust bonds (including the Exchange Bonds) or to the withdrawal of collateral, and in any event at least once a year, CFC must certify to the Trustee that:

- the allowable amount of eligible collateral pledged under the Indenture is at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of collateral trust bonds to be outstanding immediately after the authentication and delivery of such collateral trust bonds;
- the allowable amount of eligible collateral pledged under the Indenture after any withdrawal of collateral is at least equal to the aggregate principal amount of collateral trust bonds to be outstanding immediately after such withdrawal;
- each eligible mortgage note included in the eligible collateral so certified is an eligible mortgage note of a member having an Equity Ratio (defined below) of at least 20% and an Average Coverage Ratio (defined below) of at least 1.35; and
- the aggregate allowable amount of all eligible mortgage notes of any one member so certified does not exceed 10% of the aggregate allowable amount of all eligible collateral so certified. (Sections 3.01, 6.01 and 7.13)

CFC is also entitled to the authentication and delivery of collateral trust bonds (including the Exchange Bonds) on the basis of the retirement of outstanding collateral trust bonds at their final maturity or by redemption at the option of CFC. (Section 3.02)

The Indenture provides that collateral trust bonds may be issued without limitation as to aggregate principal amount so long as the allowable amount of eligible collateral pledged under the Indenture at least equals the

aggregate principal amount of collateral trust bonds to be outstanding and meets the other requirements set forth herein. (Sections 2.03 and 13.01)

"Eligible mortgage note" means a mortgage note of a distribution system member which is secured by a validly existing mortgage under which no "event of default" as defined in the mortgage shall have occurred and shall have resulted in the exercise of any right or remedy described in the mortgage. (Section 1.01)

"Equity Ratio" of any member means the ratio determined by dividing such member's equities and margins at the end of the last completed calendar year by such member's total assets and other debits at such date, in each case computed in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by RUS, or if such member does not prepare its financial statements in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by RUS, then in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, referred to herein as GAAP. (Section 1.01)

"Coverage Ratio" of any member for any completed calendar year of such member means the ratio determined by adding such member's patronage capital and operating margins, non-operating margins—interest, interest expense with respect to long-term debt and depreciation and amortization expense for such year, and dividing the sum so obtained by the sum of all payments of principal and interest required to be made during such year on account of such member's long-term debt (but in the event any portion of such member's long-term debt was refinanced during such year, the payments of principal and interest required to be made during such year in respect thereof shall be based (in lieu of actual payments thereon) upon the larger of (x) an annualization of such payments required to be made with respect to the refinancing debt during the portion of such year such refinancing debt is outstanding and (y) the payments of principal and interest required to be made during the following year on account of such refinancing debt); patronage capital and operating margins, interest expense with respect to long-term debt, depreciation and amortization expense, non-operating margins—interest and long-term debt being determined in accordance with the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed at the time by RUS or, if such member does not maintain its accounts in accordance with said Uniform System of Accounts, otherwise determined in accordance with GAAP, except that (i) in computing interest expense with respect to long-term debt, and payments of interest required to be made on account of long-term debt, for the purpose of the foregoing definition, there shall be added, to the extent not otherwise included, an amount equal to 331/3% of the excess of the restricted rentals paid by such member for such year over 2% of such member's equities and margins for such year as defined in the Uniform System of Accounts prescribed by RUS or, if such member does not maintain its accounts in accordance with said Uniform System of Accounts, otherwise determined in accordance with GAAP, and (ii) in computing such member's patronage capital and operating margins for the purpose of the foregoing definition, all cash received in respect of generation and transmission and other capital credits shall be included. The "Average Coverage Ratio" of any member means the average of the two higher coverage ratios of a member for each of the last three completed calendar years. (Section 1.01)

The effect of these provisions is to exclude from the computation of the coverage ratio capital credits, except to the extent received by the member in the form of cash.

The Indenture requires that each mortgage securing an eligible mortgage note be consistent with CFC's standard lending practices from time to time. (Section 1.01) There are no requirements in the Indenture as to the value of the property subject to the lien of a mortgage.

The Indenture provides that, unless an Event of Default (as defined herein) under the Indenture exists, and other than certain limited duties specified in the Indenture, the Trustee shall have no duties or responsibilities with regard to any mortgage, and no responsibilities with regard to the value of any property subject thereto. (Section 4.03)

Exercise of Rights under Pledged Mortgage Notes; Receipt of Payments

Until the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Indenture, CFC retains the right to control the exercise of rights and powers under mortgage notes pledged under the Indenture. (Section 15.01)

Unless an Event of Default under the Indenture occurs, CFC will be entitled to receive and retain all payments on account of principal, premium and interest on the eligible mortgage notes and permitted investments on deposit with the Trustee. (Section 4.02)

Modification of the Indenture

Modifications of the provisions of the Indenture may be made with the consent of the holders of not less than a majority in aggregate principal amount of the then outstanding collateral trust bonds (voting as a single class), but, without the consent of the holder of each collateral trust bond affected thereby, no such modification may:

- effect a reduction, or a change of the stated time of payment, of the principal of or interest on any collateral trust bond or of any premium payable on redemption, change the coin or currency in which the collateral trust bond is payable, or impair the right to take legal action for the enforcement of any such payment;
- permit the creation of any prior or equal lien on pledged property under the Indenture, terminate the lien under the Indenture, or deprive the holder of any collateral trust bond of the lien created by the Indenture:
- reduce the above-stated percentage of holders of collateral trust bonds whose consent is required to modify the Indenture or the percentage of holders of collateral trust bonds whose consent is required for any waiver under the Indenture; or
- modify any of the provisions of certain sections of the Indenture, except to increase any percentage of
 holders or to provide that certain provisions of the Indenture cannot be modified or waived without the
 consent of the holder of each collateral trust bond affected. (Section 13.02)

The Indenture provides that CFC and the Trustee may, without the consent of any holders of collateral trust bonds, enter into supplemental indentures for the purposes of:

- evidencing the succession of another company to the Indenture and the assumption of all covenants of the Indenture by such company;
- adding to CFC's covenants or events of default;
- changing or eliminating any restriction on the payment of principal of collateral trust bonds, provided
 any such action does not adversely affect the interests of the holders of collateral trust bonds of any
 series in any material respect;
- conveying, transferring and assigning to the Trustee, and subjecting to the lien of the Indenture, additional properties of CFC, and correcting or amplifying the description of any property at any time;
- establishing the form or terms of collateral trust bonds of any series;
- modifying, eliminating or adding to the Indenture for purposes of maintaining qualification under the Trust Indenture Act;
- curing ambiguities or inconsistencies in the Indenture or, provided the action does not adversely affect
 the interests of the holders of any series of collateral trust bonds in any material respect, making other
 provisions with respect to matters arising under the Indenture; or
- providing for mortgage notes, mortgages and/or loan agreements to be deposited with a depositary or an agency and/or permitting the addition to and withdrawal from the pledged property of such instruments, to be evidenced by a "book-entry" or other notation not requiring physical delivery of such instruments. (Section 13.01)

Waiver of Certain Covenants

Under the Indenture, CFC will not be required to comply with certain covenants and conditions if the holders of at least a majority in principal amount of the then outstanding collateral trust bonds (voting as a single class) waive compliance with such covenant or condition in such instance or generally, but no such waiver shall extend to or affect such covenant or condition except to the extent so expressly waived. (Section 7.16)

Events of Default

Each of the following will constitute an event of default under the Indenture (an "Event of Default"):

- failure to pay interest on any collateral trust bond for 30 days after the interest becomes due;
- failure to pay principal or any premium on any collateral trust bond at their maturity or upon redemption;
- default in the making of any sinking fund payment;
- default in the performance or breach of specified covenants in the Indenture for 60 days after such
 default is known to any officer of CFC, including the covenant to maintain eligible collateral outlined
 above;
- failure to perform any other covenant or warranty in the Indenture for 60 days after notice from the
 Trustee to CFC or from holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the collateral trust bonds then
 outstanding to the Trustee; and
- specified events of bankruptcy, reorganization or insolvency. (Section 9.01)

CFC is required to file annually with the Trustee a written statement as to CFC's compliance with the conditions and covenants under the Indenture. (Section 7.15) In case an Event of Default should occur and be continuing, the Trustee or the holders of at least 25% in principal amount of the collateral trust bonds then outstanding (voting as a single class) may declare the principal of the bonds to be immediately due and payable. Each declaration may, under certain circumstances, be rescinded by the holders of a majority in principal amount of the collateral trust bonds at the time outstanding. (Section 9.02)

Further, if an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing for 30 days following notice and demand for remedy of such Event of Default from the Trustee, the Trustee may sell any or all of the mortgage notes or other property pledged as collateral under the Indenture. (Section 9.03)

Additionally, if an Event of Default shall have occurred and be continuing for 30 days following notice and demand for remedy of such event of default from the Trustee, the Trustee shall, upon the written request of the holders of a majority in aggregate principal amount of the collateral trust bonds then outstanding and the offering of indemnity as discussed below, proceed by suit or other action to enforce payment of the collateral trust bonds or the underlying mortgage notes or other property pledged as collateral. (Sections 9.03 and 9.08)

Subject to the provisions of the Indenture relating to the duties of the Trustee in case an Event of Default shall occur and be continuing, the Trustee will be under no obligation to exercise any of its rights or powers under the Indenture at the request or direction of any of the holders of the collateral trust bonds, unless the holders have offered to the Trustee reasonable security or indemnity against the costs, expenses and liabilities which might be incurred by compliance. Subject to the provisions for indemnification and certain limitations contained in the Indenture, the holders of a majority in principal amount of the collateral trust bonds then outstanding (voting as a single class) will have the right to direct the time, method and place of conducting any proceeding for any remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising any trust or power conferred on the Trustee. The Trustee is not required to expend or risk its own funds or incur financial liability if it has reasonable grounds for believing that repayment of such funds or adequate indemnity against such risk or liability is not reasonably assured. (Sections 9.08, 10.01 and 10.03)

The Indenture provides that on receipt by the Trustee of notice of an Event of Default, declaring an acceleration or directing the time, method or place of conducting a proceeding at law if an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, the Trustee shall, with respect to any series of collateral trust bonds represented by a global security or securities, and may, with respect to any other series of collateral trust bonds, establish a record date for the purpose of determining holders of outstanding collateral trust bonds of the series entitled to join in the notice. (Sections 9.01, 9.02 and 9.08)

Satisfaction and Discharge; Defeasance

At the request of CFC, the Indenture will cease to be in effect as to CFC, except for certain obligations to register the transfer or exchange of Exchange Bonds and hold moneys for payment in trust with respect to the Exchange Bonds, when the principal of and interest on Exchange Bonds have been paid and/or CFC has deposited with the Trustee, in trust, money or U.S. government obligations which, through the payment of interest and principal in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay all the principal of, and interest on, the Exchange Bonds in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Bonds, or such Exchange Bonds are deemed paid and discharged in the manner described in the next paragraph. (Section 14.01)

At its option, CFC will be discharged from any and all obligations in respect of the Exchange Bonds after CFC deposits with the Trustee, in trust, money and U.S. government obligations which, through the payment of interest and principal in accordance with their terms, will provide money in an amount sufficient to pay in U.S. dollars all the principal of, and interest on, the Exchange Bonds on the dates on which payments are due in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Bonds. Among the conditions to CFC's exercising this option, CFC is required to deliver to the Trustee an opinion of counsel to the effect that the deposit and related defeasance would not cause the holders of the Exchange Bonds to recognize income, gain or loss for United States Federal income tax purposes and that such holders will be subject to United States Federal income tax in the same amounts, in the same manner and at the same times as would have been the case if such deposit and related defeasance had not occurred. (Section 14.02)

At the request of CFC, the Trustee will deliver or pay to CFC any U.S. government obligations or money deposited with the Trustee by CFC for the purposes described in the preceding two paragraphs and which, in the opinion of an independent accountant, are in excess of the amount which would then have been required to be deposited for such purposes. In addition, the Trustee, in exchange for other U.S. government obligations or money, will deliver or pay to CFC, at CFC's request, U.S. government obligations, or money deposited with the Trustee for the purposes described in the preceding two paragraphs, so long as the exchange occurs simultaneously, CFC has delivered to the Trustee an officers' certificate and opinion of counsel stating that all related conditions precedent have been complied with, and in the opinion of an independent accountant, immediately after the exchange, the obligations, securities or money then held by the Trustee will be in the amount as would then have been required to be deposited with the trustee for these purposes. (Section 14.02)

Governing Law

The Indenture is, and the Exchange Bonds will be, governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of the State of New York.

The Trustee

U.S. Bank National Association is the trustee with respect to all collateral trust bonds issued under the Indenture.

Further Issuances

CFC may, without the consent of the then existing holders of the Exchange Bonds, "re-open" the series of Exchange Bonds and issue additional Exchange Bonds, which additional bonds will have the same terms as the Exchange Bonds issued hereby except for the issue price, issue date and under some circumstances, the first

interest payment date. CFC will not issue any additional Exchange Bonds unless the additional Exchange Bonds will be fungible with the Exchange Bonds issued hereby for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Book Entry, Delivery and Form

For information regarding book entry, delivery and the form of the Exchange Bonds, please see "Book-Entry Bonds" below.

Notices

Except as otherwise provided in the Indenture, notices to holders of the Exchange Bonds will be sent by mail to the registered holders.

Replacement Securities

In case of mutilation, destruction, loss or theft of any definitive Exchange Bond, application for replacement is to be made at the office of the Trustee. Any such definitive Exchange Bond will be replaced by the Trustee in compliance with such procedures, and on such terms as to evidence and indemnity, as the issuer and the Trustee may require. All costs incurred in connection with the replacement of any definitive Exchange Bond will be borne by the holder of the Exchange Bond. Mutilated or defaced definitive Exchange Bonds must be surrendered before new ones will be issued.

BOOK-ENTRY DEBT SECURITIES

Global Bonds

We will issue the Exchange Bonds in the form of one or more global bonds in book-entry form. The global bonds will be deposited with the Trustee and registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. Each beneficial interest in a global bond is referred to as a book-entry interest.

The book-entry interests will be represented through book-entry accounts of financial institutions acting on behalf of beneficial owners as direct and indirect participants in DTC. Investors may elect to hold interests in the global bonds through either DTC (in the U.S.) or Clearstream Banking, société anonyme, referred to herein as Clearstream, or Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., as operator of the Euroclear System, referred to herein as Euroclear, (in Europe) if they are participants of such systems, or indirectly through organizations that are participants in such systems. Clearstream and Euroclear will hold interests on behalf of their participants through customers' securities accounts in Clearstream's and Euroclear's names on the books of their respective depositaries, which in turn will hold such interests in customers' securities accounts in the depositaries' names on the books of DTC. The book-entry interests will be held in denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof. Except as set forth below, the global bonds may be transferred, in whole and not in part, only to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or its nominee.

Book-entry interests will be shown on, and transfers thereof will be effected only through, records maintained in book-entry form by DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream and their participants. The laws of some jurisdictions, including certain states of the United States, may require that certain purchasers of securities take physical delivery of such securities in definitive form. The foregoing limitations may impair your ability to own, transfer or pledge book-entry interests. In addition, while the Exchange Bonds are in global form, holders of book-entry interests will not be considered the owners or "holders" of Exchange Bonds for any purpose.

So long as the Exchange Bonds are held in global form, DTC will be considered the sole owner or holder of the Exchange Bonds represented by that global bond for all purposes under the Indenture and Exchange Bonds. In addition, participants must rely on the procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, as the case may be, and indirect participants must rely on the procedures of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream and the participants through which they own book-entry interests to transfer their interests or to exercise any rights of holders under the Indenture.

Neither CFC nor the Trustee will have any responsibility or obligation to participants, or the persons for whom they act as nominees, with respect to the accuracy of the records of DTC, DTC's nominee or any DTC participant with respect to any ownership interest in the Exchange Bonds, or payments to, or the providing of notice for, DTC participants or beneficial owners.

The information in this section concerning DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream and DTC's book-entry system has been obtained from sources that CFC believes to be reliable, but CFC does not take any responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

Payments on Global Bonds

Payments of any amounts owing in respect of the global bonds (including principal, premium, if any, and interest) will be made by CFC to DTC or its nominee, which will distribute such payments to participants in accordance with their procedures.

CFC expects that DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable (or their respective nominees), upon receipt of any payment of principal of or any premium or interest in respect of a global bond, will immediately credit, on

its book-entry registration and transfer system, accounts of participants with payments in amounts proportionate to their respective book-entry interests in the principal amount of the global bonds, as shown on the records of DTC, Euroclear or Clearstream, as applicable (or their respective nominees).

CFC also expects that payments by participants to owners of book-entry interests held through those participants will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is now the case with securities held for the accounts of customers registered in "street name," and will be the responsibility of those participants.

The Indenture provides that CFC and the Trustee will treat the registered holder of the global bonds as the owner thereof for the purpose of receiving payments and for all other purposes. Consequently, none of CFC, the Trustee or any agent of CFC or the Trustee has or will have any responsibility or liability for:

- any aspect of the records of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream or any participant or indirect participation
 relating to or payments made on account of a book-entry interest or for maintaining, supervising or
 reviewing the records of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream or any participant or indirect participant relating
 to or payments made on account of a book-entry interest, or
- any other acts or omissions of DTC, Euroclear, Clearstream or any participant or indirect participant.

Action by Owners of Book-Entry Interests

DTC has advised CFC that it will take any action permitted to be taken by a holder of Exchange Bonds only at the direction of one or more participants to whose account or accounts the book-entry interests in the global bonds are credited and only in respect of such portion of the aggregate principal amount of Exchange Bonds as to which such participant or participants has or have given such direction. DTC will not exercise any discretion in the granting of consents, waivers or the taking of any other action in respect of the global bonds. However, if there is an Event of Default under the Exchange Bonds, DTC (or its nominee) will exchange the applicable global bond for definitive Exchange Bonds in registered form, which it will distribute to its participants. See "—Definitive Registered Bonds."

Transfers

Transfers between participants in DTC will be effected in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in immediately available funds. If a holder requires physical delivery of definitive registered bonds for any reason, including to sell bonds to persons in states which require physical delivery of such securities or to pledge such securities, such holder must transfer its interest in the global bonds in accordance with the normal procedures of DTC and in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Indenture.

Definitive Registered Bonds

Individual certificates in respect of the Exchange Bonds will not be issued in exchange for the global bonds, except in limited circumstances. CFC will issue or cause to be issued individual certificates for Exchange Bonds in registered form, referred to herein as Definitive Exchange Bonds, on registration of transfer of, or in exchange for, book-entry interests in such Exchange Bonds represented by global bonds upon delivery of such global bonds for cancellation if (1) CFC decides to discontinue use of the book-entry system, (2) in the event of an Event of Default under the Indenture, upon request of a holder of the Exchange Bonds on such terms as are acceptable to CFC and the depositary (as defined in the Indenture) or (3) DTC notifies CFC that it is unwilling or unable to continue as a clearing system in connection with such global bonds or ceases to be a clearing agency registered under the Exchange Act, and a successor clearing system is not appointed by CFC within 90 days after receiving such notice from DTC or upon becoming aware that DTC is no longer so registered.

Payments on any Definitive Exchange Bond would be made by the Trustee directly to holders of the Definitive Exchange Bonds in accordance with the procedures set forth herein and in the Indenture. Interest payments and any principal payments on the Definitive Exchange Bonds on each interest payment date would be

made to holders in whose names the Definitive Exchange Bonds were registered at the close of business on the related record date. Such payments would be made by check mailed to the address of such holders as they appear on the bond register and, in addition, under the circumstances provided by the Indenture, by wire transfer to a bank or depository institution located in the United States and appropriate facilities thereof. The final payment of principal and interest on any Definitive Exchange Bonds, however, would be made only upon presentation and surrender of such Definitive Exchange Bonds at the office of the paying agent for such bonds.

A Definitive Exchange Bond may be transferred free of charge in whole or in part upon the surrender of the Definitive Exchange Bond to be transferred, together with the completed and executed assignment which appears on the reverse of the Definitive Exchange Bond, at the specified office of any transfer agent. In the case of a permitted transfer of any part of a Definitive Exchange Bond, a new Definitive Exchange Bond in respect of the balance not transferred will be issued to the transferor. Each new Definitive Exchange Bond to be issued upon the transfer of a Definitive Exchange Bond will, upon the effective receipt of such completed assignment by a transfer agent at its respective specified office, be available for delivery at such specified office, or at the request of the holder requesting such transfer, will be mailed at the risk of the transferee entitled to the new Definitive Exchange Bond to such address as may be specified in such completed assignment. Neither the registrar nor any transfer agent shall be required to register the transfer of or exchange of any Definitive Exchange Bond within 15 days before the maturity date.

Any global bond representing book-entry interests that is exchangeable pursuant to the above will be exchangeable in whole for Definitive Exchange Bonds, of like tenor and of an equal aggregate principal amount, in denominations \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof. Upon the exchange of a global bond for Definitive Exchange Bonds, that global bond will be canceled by the Trustee and the Definitive Exchange Bonds will be registered in the names and in the authorized denominations as DTC, pursuant to instructions from its participants, any indirect participants or otherwise, instructs the Trustee. The Trustee will deliver those Exchange Bonds in definitive registered form to the persons in whose names those Exchange Bonds are registered and will recognize those persons as the holders of those Exchange Bonds.

Except as provided above, owners of book-entry interests will not be entitled to receive physical delivery of Exchange Bonds in definitive form and will not be considered the holders of those Exchange Bonds for any purpose under the Indenture, and no global bond representing book-entry interests will be exchangeable, except for another global bond of like denomination and tenor to be registered in the name of DTC (or its nominee). Accordingly, each person owning a book-entry interests must rely on the procedures of DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream, as applicable (and their respective nominees) and, if that person is not a participant, on the procedures of the participant through which that person owns its interest, to exercise any rights of a holder under that global bond or the Indenture.

Information Concerning DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream

CFC understands as follows with respect to DTC, Euroclear and Clearstream:

DTC

DTC is a limited purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, a "banking organization" within the meaning of New York Banking Law, a member of the Federal Reserve System, a "clearing corporation" within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial Code, and a "Clearing Agency" registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Exchange Act. DTC was created to hold securities of its participants, referred to herein as DTC Participants, and to facilitate the clearance and settlement of securities transactions among DTC Participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of DTC Participants and certain other organizations, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of securities certificates. DTC Participants include securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations, some of whom (or their representatives) own interests in DTC.

Indirect access to DTC's book-entry system is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a DTC Participant, either directly or indirectly, referred to herein as indirect participants.

Because DTC can only act on behalf of DTC Participants, who in turn act on behalf of indirect participants and certain banks, the ability of an owner of a beneficial interest to pledge such interest to persons or entities that are not DTC Participants or otherwise take actions in respect of such interest may be limited by the lack of a definitive certificate for that interest. The laws of some states require that certain persons take physical delivery of securities in definitive form. Consequently, the ability to transfer beneficial interests to such persons may be limited. In addition, owners of beneficial interests through DTC's system will receive distributions attributable to the global bonds only through DTC Participants.

Euroclear

Euroclear advises that it was created in 1968 to hold securities for participants of Euroclear, referred to herein as Euroclear Participants, and to clear and settle transactions between Euroclear Participants and between Euroclear Participants and participants of certain other securities intermediaries through simultaneous electronic book-entry delivery against payment, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates and any risk from lack of simultaneous transfers of securities and cash. Euroclear provides various other services, including safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement, securities lending and borrowing, and related services, and interfaces with domestic markets in several countries. Euroclear is operated by Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., referred to herein as the Euroclear Operator, under contract with Euroclear Clearance Systems S.C., a Belgian cooperative corporation, referred to herein as the Cooperative. All operations are conducted by the Euroclear Operator, and all Euroclear securities clearance accounts and Euroclear cash accounts are accounts with the Euroclear Operator, not the Cooperative. The Cooperative establishes policy for Euroclear on behalf of Euroclear Participants.

Euroclear Participants include investment banks, securities brokers and dealers, banks, central banks, supranationals, custodians, investment managers, corporations, trust companies and certain other organizations, and may include the dealer manager. Indirect access to Euroclear is also available to other firms that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Euroclear Participant, either directly or indirectly. The Euroclear Operator was launched on December 31, 2000, and replaced Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York as the operator of and banker to the Euroclear system. Securities clearance accounts and cash accounts with the Euroclear Operator are governed by the Terms and Conditions Governing Use of Euroclear and the related Operating Procedures of the Euroclear System, and applicable Belgian law, (collectively, referred to herein as the Terms and Conditions). The Terms and Conditions govern transfers of securities and cash within Euroclear, withdrawals of securities and cash from Euroclear, and receipts of payments with respect to securities in Euroclear. All securities in Euroclear are held on a fungible basis, without attribution of specific certificates to specific securities clearance accounts. The Euroclear Operator acts under the Terms and Conditions only on behalf of Euroclear Participants, and has no record of or relationship with persons holding through Euroclear Participants. Distributions with respect to Exchange Bonds held beneficially through Euroclear will be credited to the cash accounts of Euroclear Participants in accordance with the Terms and Conditions, to the extent received by the U.S. Depositary for Euroclear.

Clearstream

Clearstream holds securities for its participating organizations, referred to herein as Clearstream Participants, and facilitates the clearance and settlement of securities transactions between Clearstream Participants through electronic book-entry changes in accounts of Clearstream Participants, thereby eliminating the need for physical movement of certificates. Clearstream provides to Clearstream Participants, among other things, services for safekeeping, administration, clearance and settlement of internationally traded securities and securities lending and borrowing. Clearstream interfaces with domestic markets in several countries.

Clearstream is registered as a bank in Luxembourg, and as such is subject to regulation by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier, and the Banque Centrale du Luxembourg which supervise and oversee the activities of Luxembourg banks. Clearstream Participants are recognized financial institutions around the world, including underwriters, securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and may include the dealer manager. Indirect access to Clearstream is also available to others, such as banks, brokers, dealers and trust companies that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Clearstream Participant either directly or indirectly. Clearstream has established an electronic bridge with the Euroclear Operator in Brussels to facilitate settlement of trades between Clearstream and the Euroclear Operator. Distributions with respect to Exchange Bonds held beneficially through Clearstream will be credited to cash accounts of Clearstream Participants in accordance with its rules and procedures, to the extent received by the U.S. Depositary for Clearstream.

Global Clearance and Settlement Under the Book-Entry System

Transfers between DTC Participants will be effected in the ordinary way in accordance with DTC rules and will be settled in same-day funds. Secondary market trading between Clearstream Participants and/or Euroclear Participants will be effected in the ordinary way, in accordance with the applicable rules and operating procedures of Clearstream and Euroclear, and will be settled using the procedures applicable to conventional eurobonds in immediately available funds.

Cross-market transfers between persons holding directly or indirectly through DTC Participants, on the one hand, and directly or indirectly through Clearstream Participants or Euroclear Participants, on the other, will be effected in DTC in accordance with the DTC rules on behalf of the relevant European international clearing system by its U.S. Depositary; however, such cross-market transactions will require delivery of instructions to the relevant European international clearing system by the counterparty in such system, in accordance with its rules and procedures and within its established deadlines (European time). The relevant European international clearing system will, if the transaction meets its settlement requirements, deliver instructions to its U.S. Depositary to take action to effect final settlement on its behalf by delivering or receiving Exchange Bonds in DTC, and making or receiving payment in accordance with normal procedures for same-day funds settlement applicable to DTC. Clearstream Participants and Euroclear Participants may not deliver instructions directly to their respective U.S. Depositaries.

Because of time-zone differences, credits of book-entry interests received in Clearstream or Euroclear as a result of a transaction with a DTC Participant will be made during subsequent securities settlement processing and dated the business day following the DTC settlement date. Such credits or any transactions in such Exchange Bonds settled during such processing will be reported to the relevant Euroclear Participants or Clearstream Participants on such business day. Cash received in Clearstream or Euroclear as a result of sales of Exchange Bonds by or through a Clearstream Participant or a Euroclear Participant to a DTC Participant will be received on the DTC settlement date but will be available in the relevant Clearstream or Euroclear cash account only as of the business day following settlement in DTC. Although DTC, Clearstream and Euroclear have agreed to the foregoing procedures in order to facilitate transfers of Exchange Bonds among DTC Participants, Clearstream Participants and Euroclear Participants, they are under no obligation to perform or continue to perform such procedures and such procedures may be discontinued at any time.

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSEQUENCES

The following is a summary of the material U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder who exchanges its Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer. This summary is based upon existing U.S. federal income tax law, which is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary does not discuss all aspects of U.S. federal income taxation which may be important to particular investors in light of their individual investment circumstances, such as Original Bonds held by investors subject to special tax rules (e.g., financial institutions, insurance companies, broker-dealers, tax-exempt organizations (including private foundations) and partnerships and their partners), or to persons that hold the Original Bonds as part of a straddle, hedge, conversion, constructive sale, or other integrated security transaction for U.S. federal income tax purposes or that have a functional currency other than the U.S. dollar, all of whom may be subject to tax rules that differ significantly from those summarized below. In addition, this summary does not address any state, local, or non-U.S. tax considerations. Each holder is urged to consult his tax advisor regarding the U.S. federal, state, local, and non- U.S. income and other tax consequences of the ownership and disposition of the Exchange Bonds.

The exchange of Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds in the Exchange Offer will not constitute a taxable event to holders for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Consequently, no gain or loss will be recognized by a holder upon receipt of an Exchange Bond; the holding period of Exchange Bond will include the holding period of the Original Bond; and the adjusted tax basis of the Exchange Bond will be the same as the adjusted tax basis of the Original Bond immediately before the exchange. There will be no U.S. federal income tax consequences to a holder of an Original Bond that does not participate in the Exchange Offer.

In any event, persons considering the exchange of Original Bonds for Exchange Bonds should consult their own tax advisors concerning the United States federal income tax consequences in light of their particular situations, as well as any consequences arising under laws of any other taxing jurisdiction.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

Based on interpretations by the staff of the SEC, as detailed in a series of no-action letters issued to third parties, we believe that the Exchange Bond issued in the Exchange Offer may be offered for resale, resold or otherwise transferred by holders thereof without compliance with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act as long as (i) such holder is acquiring the Exchange Bonds in the ordinary course of its business, (ii) such holder is not participating and does not intend to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds, (iii) such holder has no arrangement or understanding with any person to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds, (iv) such holder is not our affiliate, (v) if such holder is a broker-dealer such holder acquired the Original Bonds as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities and not directly from us for its own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds, and (vi) if such holder is a broker-dealer that will receive Exchange Bonds for its own account in exchange for Original Bonds that were acquired as a result of market-making or other trading activities, then it shall deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such Exchange Bonds. If such holder is participating in the Exchange Offer for the purpose of distributing the Exchange Bonds to be acquired in the Exchange Offer, such holder cannot rely on the position of the staff of the SEC enunciated in the no-action letters referred to above or interpretive letters to a similar effect, and such holder must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act, in connection with a resale of the Exchange Bonds. If such holder fails to comply with these requirements, such holder may incur liabilities under the Securities Act, and we will not indemnify such holder for such liabilities.

In addition, in connection with any resales of the Exchange Bonds, exchanging broker-dealers that receive Exchange Bonds for their own account pursuant to this Exchange Offer must deliver a prospectus meeting the requirements of the Securities Act. The SEC has taken the position that exchanging broker-dealers may fulfill their prospectus delivery requirements with respect to the Exchange Bonds with the prospectus contained in the Exchange Offer registration statement. As a result, each broker-dealer that receives Exchange Bonds for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer must acknowledge that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of such Exchange Bonds. This prospectus, as it may be amended or supplemented from time to time, may be used by a broker-dealer in connection with resales of Exchange Bonds received in exchange for Original Bonds where such Original Bonds were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities. We have agreed that, for a period of up to 270 days after the expiration of the Exchange Offer, we will make this prospectus, as amended or supplemented, available to any broker-dealer for use in connection with any such resale. In addition, during this 270-day period, all dealers effecting transactions in the Exchange Bonds may be required to deliver a prospectus.

We will not receive any proceeds from any sale of Exchange Bonds by broker-dealers or any other persons. Exchange Bonds received by broker-dealers for their own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer may be sold from time to time in one or more transactions in the over-the-counter market, in negotiated transactions, through the writing of options on the Exchange Bonds, or a combination of these methods of resale, at market prices prevailing at the time of resale, at prices related to the prevailing market prices or negotiated prices. Any resale may be made directly to purchasers or to or through brokers or dealers who may receive compensation in the form of commissions or concessions from any broker-dealer and/or the purchasers of any Exchange Bonds. Any broker-dealer that resells Exchange Bonds that were received by it for its own account pursuant to the Exchange Offer and any broker-dealer that participates in a distribution of Exchange Bonds may be deemed to be an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act, and any profit resulting from these resales of Exchange Bonds and any commissions or concessions received by any of these persons may be deemed to be underwriting compensation under the Securities Act. The letter of transmittal states that, by acknowledging that it will deliver and by delivering a prospectus, a broker-dealer will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.

We have agreed to pay certain expenses incident to the Exchange Offer (other than the expenses of counsel for the holders of the Original Bonds) and commissions or concessions of any brokers or dealers and will indemnify the holders of the Original Bonds and the Exchange Bonds (including any broker-dealers) against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Hogan Lovells US LLP, Washington, D.C.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements incorporated by reference in this prospectus from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended May 31, 2012 have been audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which is incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements have been so incorporated in reliance upon the report of such firm given upon their authority as experts in accounting and auditing.

LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL



NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORPORATION

OFFER TO EXCHANGE

Up to \$379,372,000 aggregate principal amount of the 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Any and all outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended

Pursuant to the Prospectus dated February 5, 2013

THE EXCHANGE OFFER WILL EXPIRE AT 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON MARCH 6, 2013, UNLESS EXTENDED (SUCH DATE AND TIME, AS THE SAME MAY BE EXTENDED, THE "EXPIRATION DATE"). TENDERS MAY BE WITHDRAWN PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

The Exchange Agent for the Exchange Offer is:

D.F. King & Co., Inc.

By Mail, By Hand and Overnight Courier:

48 Wall Street, 22nd Floor New York, NY 10005 Attention: Elton Bagley

By Facsimile (for eligible institutions only): (212) 809-8838

Confirmation Call: (212) 493-6996

Banks and Brokers: (212) 269-5550 Toll Free: (800) 659-5550

DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL TO AN ADDRESS OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE, OR TRANSMISSION OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL VIA FACSIMILE OTHER THAN AS SET FORTH ABOVE, WILL NOT CONSTITUTE A VALID DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.

The undersigned hereby acknowledges receipt of the prospectus dated February 5, 2013 (the "Prospectus" of National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation, a District of Columbia cooperative association ("CFC"), and this Letter of Transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal"), which together constitute CFC's offer to exchange (the "Exchange Offer") up to \$379,372,000 of its 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 (the "Exchange Bonds"), that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), for any and all of its outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 (CUSIP 637432 MR3) (the "Original Bonds") that have not been registered under the Securities Act, of which an aggregate amount of \$379,372,000 was outstanding as of February 5, 2013. Capitalized terms used but not defined in this Letter of Transmittal have the meanings ascribed to them in the Prospectus.

For each Original Bond accepted for exchange, the holder of that Original Bond will receive an Exchange Bond having a principal amount equal to that of the surrendered Original Bond. Original Bonds accepted for exchange will not receive accrued interest at the time of the exchange. However, each Exchange Bond will bear interest from October 16, 2012.

This Letter of Transmittal is to be completed by a holder of Original Bonds if certificates are to be forwarded with the Letter of Transmittal. Holders of Original Bonds whose certificates are not immediately available, whose Original Bonds are held through DTC, or who are unable to deliver their certificates and all other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal to D.F. King & Co., Inc., the exchange agent for the Exchange Offer (the "Exchange Agent"), on or before the Expiration Date, must comply with DTC's Automated Tender Offer Procedures ("ATOP") for book-entry transfer described in "The Exchange Offer—Book-Entry Delivery Procedures for Tendering Original Bonds Held with DTC." See Instruction 1. **Delivery of documents to DTC does not constitute delivery to the Exchange Agent.**

Holders of Original Bonds tendering by book-entry transfer to the Exchange Agent's account at DTC may execute tenders through ATOP, for which the Exchange Offer is eligible. Financial institutions that are DTC participants may execute tenders through ATOP by transmitting acceptance of the Exchange Offer to DTC on or prior to the Expiration Date. DTC will verify acceptance of the Exchange Offer, execute a book-entry transfer of the tendered Original Bonds into the account of the Exchange Agent at DTC and send to the Exchange Agent a "book-entry confirmation," which shall include an agent's message. An "agent's message" is a message, transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the Exchange Agent and forming part of a book-entry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from a DTC participant tendering Original Bonds that the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of this Letter of Transmittal as an undersigned hereof and that CFC may enforce such agreement against the participant. Delivery of the agent's message by DTC will satisfy the terms of the Exchange Offer as to execution and delivery of a Letter of Transmittal by the DTC participant identified in the agent's message. Accordingly, holders who tender their Original Bonds through DTC's ATOP procedures shall be bound by, but need not complete, this Letter of Transmittal.

If you are a beneficial owner that holds Original Bonds through Euroclear or Clearstream and wish to tender your Original Bonds, you must contact Euroclear or Clearstream, as the case may be, directly to ascertain their procedures for tendering Original Bonds and must comply with such procedure.

The undersigned hereby tenders the Original Bonds described in Box 1 below pursuant to the terms and conditions described in the Prospectus and this Letter of Transmittal. The undersigned is the registered owner of all of the tendered Original Bonds and the undersigned represents that it has received from each beneficial owner of the tendered Original Bonds (collectively, the "Beneficial Owners"), if any, a duly completed and executed form of "Instructions to Registered Holders from Beneficial Owner" accompanying this Letter of Transmittal, instructing the undersigned to take the action described in this Letter of Transmittal.

Subject to, and effective upon, the acceptance for exchange of the tendering Original Bonds, the undersigned hereby exchanges, assigns and transfer to, or upon the order of, CFC, all right, title and interest in, to and under the Original Bonds.

The undersigned hereby irrevocably constitutes and appoints the Exchange Agent as the true and lawful agent and attorney-in-fact of the undersigned with respect to the tendered Original Bonds, with full power of substitution (the power of attorney being deemed to be an irrevocable power coupled with an interest), to (i) deliver the Original Bonds to CFC or cause ownership of the tendered Original Bonds to be transferred to, or upon the order of, CFC, on the books of the registrar for the Original Bonds and deliver all accompanying evidences of transfer and authenticity to, or upon the order of, CFC upon receipt by the Exchange Agent, as the undersigned's agent, of the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer, and (ii) receive all benefits and otherwise exercise all rights of beneficial ownership of the tendered Original Bonds, all in accordance with the terms of the Exchange Offer.

Unless otherwise indicated under "Special Issuance Instructions" below (Box 2), please issue the Exchange Bonds exchanged for tendered Original Bonds in the name(s) of the undersigned. Ownership of beneficial interests in the global bond representing the Exchange Bonds will be limited to DTC and to persons that may hold interests through institutions that have accounts with DTC, which we refer to as participants. Accordingly, only DTC participants may receive beneficial interests in the Exchange Bonds in their own names. If you are not a DTC participant, you will need to specify the name and account number of a DTC participant under "Special Delivery Instructions" in Box 3. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated under "Special Delivery Instructions" below (Box 3), please send or cause to be sent the certificates for the Exchange Bonds (and accompanying documents, as appropriate) to the undersigned at the address show below in Box 1.

The undersigned understands that tenders of Original Bonds pursuant to the procedures described under the caption "The Exchange Offer" in the Prospectus and in the instructions to this Letter of Transmittal and acceptance of such Original Bonds by CFC, following such acceptance, will constitute a binding agreement between the undersigned and CFC upon the terms and subject to the conditions of the Exchange Offer, subject only to withdrawal of tenders prior to acceptance by CFC on the terms set forth in the Prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer—Withdrawal of Tenders of Original Bonds."

All authority conferred or agreed to be conferred by this Letter of Transmittal shall not be affected by, and shall survive, the death, bankruptcy or incapacity of the undersigned and any Beneficial Owner(s), and every obligation of the undersigned or any Beneficial Owners under this Letter of Transmittal will be binding upon the heirs, executors, administrators, trustees in bankruptcy, personal and legal representatives, successors and assigns of the undersigned and such Beneficial Owner(s).

The undersigned hereby represents and warrants that the undersigned has full power and authority to tender, exchange, assign and transfer the Original Bonds being tendered, and that, when the Original Bonds are accepted for exchange as contemplated in this Letter of Transmittal, CFC will acquire good and unencumbered title to the Original Bonds being tendered, free and clear of all security interests, liens, restrictions, charges, encumbrances, conditional sale agreements or other obligations relating to their sale or transfer, and not subject to any adverse claim. The undersigned and each Beneficial Owner will, upon request, execute and deliver any additional documents reasonably requested by CFC or the Exchange Agent as necessary or desirable to complete and give effect to the transactions contemplated hereby.

In addition, the undersigned hereby represent and warrants that:

- the Original Bonds being acquired pursuant to the Exchange Offer are being acquired in the ordinary course of business of the undersigned or of any other person receiving the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer through the undersigned, whether or not that person is the holder of the Original Bonds;
- (ii) neither the undersigned nor any other person acquiring the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer through the undersigned, whether or not that person is the holder of Original Bonds, is participating in or has an intent to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds;

- (iii) neither the undersigned nor any other person acquiring the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer through the undersigned, whether or not that person is the holder of Original Bonds, has an arrangement or understanding with any other person to participate in a distribution of the Exchange Bonds;
- (iv) neither the undersigned nor any other person acquiring the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer through the undersigned, whether or not that person is the holder of Original Bonds, is an "affiliate," as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act, of CFC; and
- (v) if the undersigned is a broker-dealer, the undersigned acquired the Original Bonds as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities and not directly from the Corporation for its own account in the initial offering of the Original Bonds.

If any of the foregoing representations and warranties are not true, then the undersigned acknowledges and agrees that it is not eligible to participate in the Exchange Offer, cannot rely on the position of the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission enunciated in a series of no-action letters issued to third parties in connection with exchange offers and must comply with the registration and prospectus delivery requirements of the Securities Act in connection with the resale of the undersigned's bonds.

If any of the undersigned or any other person acquiring the Exchange Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer through the undersigned, whether or not that person is the holder of Original Bonds, is a broker-dealer that will receive the Exchange Bonds for its own account in exchange for Original Bonds that were acquired as a result of market-making activities or other trading activities, it hereby (i) confirms that it has not entered into any arrangement or understanding with CFC or an affiliate of CFC to distribute the Exchange Bonds and (ii) acknowledges that it will deliver a prospectus in connection with any resale of the Exchange Bonds; however, by so acknowledging and by delivering a prospectus, the undersigned will not be deemed to admit that it is an "underwriter" within the meaning of the Securities Act.

The undersigned understands that the delivery and surrender of the Original Bonds is not effective, and the risk of loss of the Original Bonds does not pass to the Exchange Agent, until receipt by the Exchange Agent of this Letter of Transmittal (or a facsimile thereof), properly completed and duly executed, or properly transmitted agent's message, together with all accompanying evidences of authority and any other required documents in form satisfactory to CFC. All questions as to the validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt) and acceptance of any tendered bonds pursuant to the procedures described above will be determined by CFC in its sole discretion (whose determination shall be final and binding).

	CHECK HERE IF TENDERED ORIGINAL BONDS ARE BEING DELIVERED WITH THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.
	CHECK HERE IF YOU ARE A BROKER-DEALER AND WISH TO RECEIVE 10 ADDITIONAL COPIES OF THE PROSPECTUS AND 10 COPIES OF ANY AMENDMENTS OR SUPPLEMENTS TO THE PROSPECTUS.
NA	ME:
ΑD	DRESS:

PLEASE READ THIS ENTIRE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL CAREFULLY BEFORE COMPLETING THE BOXES

DESCRIPTION OF ORIGINAL BONDS TENDERED				
(Attach additional signed pages, if necessary)				
Name(s) and Address(es) of Registered Holder(s), exactly as name(s) appear(s) on Bond Certificate(s) (Please fill in, if blank)	Certificate Number(s) of Original Bonds	Aggregate Principal Amount Represented by Certificate(s)	Aggregate Principal Amount Tendered*	
	TOTAL			

^{*} Tenders of Original Bonds will be accepted only in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof. Unless otherwise indicated in this column, the aggregate principal amount of the Original Bonds represented by the certificates identified in his Box 1 or delivered to the Exchange Agent with this Letter of Transmittal will be deemed tendered. See Instruction 3.

Box 2

SPECIAL ISSUANCE INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 4, 5 and 6)

To be completed ONLY if certificates for Original Bonds not exchanged and/or Exchange Bonds are to be issued in the name of and sent to someone other than the undersigned.

Issue Exchange Bonds(s) and/or Original Bonds to:

	(Please Type or Print)
Address:	
	(Include Zip Code)
(Tax Ident	ification or Social Security Num

Box 3

SPECIAL DELIVERY INSTRUCTIONS (See Instructions 4, 5 and 6)

To be completed ONLY if Exchange Bonds are to be issued to someone other than the undersigned, or to the undersigned at an address or a DTC account other than that shown in Box 1.

Issue Exchange Bond(s) to:

Name(s) of DTC Participant:
(Please Type or Print)
DTC participant account number:
Contact name of tendering holder's broker or custodian:
Contact talanhana number This Roy 3 must be

Contact telephone number: This Box 3 must be completed if you are NOT a DTC participant.

Box 4

TENDERING HOLDER SIGNATURE (See Instructions 1 and 4) X X (Signature of Registered Holder(s) or Authorized Signatory) Note: The above lines must be signed by the registered holder(s) of Original Bonds as their name(s) appear(s) on the Original Bonds or by person(s) authorized to become registered holder(s) (evidence of which authorization must be transmitted with this Letter of Transmittal). If signature is by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, officer, or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, that person must set forth his or her full title below. See Instruction 4. Name(s): Capacity: Street Address: (Include Zip Code) (Area Code and Telephone Number) (Tax Identification or Social Security Number) Signature Guarantee: (If Required by Instruction 4) Authorized Signature: Name: (Please Type or Print) Title: Name of Firm: (Must be an Eligible Institution as defined in Instruction 1) Address: (Include Zip Code) Area Code and Telephone Number: ____ Dated: If you are a DTC participant, please provide your DTC participant account number: _____

INSTRUCTIONS TO LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL

FORMING PART OF THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE EXCHANGE OFFER

1. Delivery of Letter of Transmittal and Original Bonds. This Letter of Transmittal is to be used if certificates for Original Bonds are to be physically delivered to the Exchange Agent herewith, as set forth in the Prospectus.

To validly tender Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer, either (a) the Exchange Agent must receive a properly completed and duly executed copy of this Letter of Transmittal with any required signature guarantees, together with certificates for the Original Bonds and any other documents required by this Letter of Transmittal, or (b) a holder must comply with the ATOP procedures for book-entry transfer described below on or before the Expiration Date.

The Exchange Agent and DTC have confirmed that the Exchange Offer is eligible for DTC's ATOP with respect to book-entry Original Bonds held through DTC. The Letter of Transmittal with any required signature guarantees, or, in the case of book-entry transfer, an agent's message in lieu of the Letter of Transmittal, and any other required documents, must be transmitted to and received by the Exchange Agent on or prior to the Expiration Date. Original Bonds will not be deemed to have been tendered until the Letter of Transmittal and signature guarantees, if any, or agent's message, is received by the Exchange Agent.

Any financial institution that is a nominee of DTC, including Euroclear and Clearstream, must tender Original Bonds by effecting a book-entry transfer of Original Bonds to be tendered in the Exchange Offer into the account of the Exchange Agent at DTC by electronically transmitting its acceptance of the Exchange Offer through the ATOP procedures for transfer. DTC will then verify the acceptance, execute a book-entry delivery to the Exchange Agent's account at DTC and send an agent's message to the Exchange Agent. An "agent's message" is a message, transmitted by DTC to, and received by, the Exchange Agent and forming part of a bookentry confirmation, which states that DTC has received an express acknowledgement from an organization that participates in DTC, which we refer to as a "participant," tendering Original Bonds that the participant has received and agrees to be bound by the terms of the Letter of Transmittal and that we may enforce the agreement against the participant. A Letter of Transmittal need not accompany tenders effected through ATOP.

THE METHOD OF DELIVERY OF THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL, THE CERTIFICATES FOR THE ORIGINAL BONDS AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS IS AT THE ELECTION AND RISK OF THE TENDERING HOLDER. EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED IN THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL AND IN THE PROSPECTUS, DELIVERY WILL BE DEEMED MADE ONLY WHEN ACTUALLY RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT. IF DELIVERY IS BY MAIL, WE RECOMMEND THAT THE HOLDER USE PROPERLY INSURED, REGISTERED MAIL WITH RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED, AND THAT THE MAILING BE MADE SUFFICIENTLY IN ADVANCE OF THE EXPIRATION DATE TO PERMIT DELIVERY TO THE EXCHANGE AGENT BEFORE 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

- 2. Beneficial Owner Instructions to Registered Holders. Only a holder in whose name tendered Original Bonds are registered (or the legal representative or attorney-in-fact of that registered holder) may execute and deliver this Letter of Transmittal. Any Beneficial Owner, if any, of tendered Original Bonds, who is not the registered holder must arrange promptly with the registered holder to execute and deliver this Letter of Transmittal on his or her behalf through the execution and delivery to the registered holders of the "Instructions to Registered Holder from Beneficial Owner" form accompanying this Letter of Transmittal.
- 3. Partial Tenders. Tenders of Original Bonds will be accepted only in minimum denominations of \$2,000 and integral multiples of \$1,000 in excess thereof. If less than the entire principal amount of Original Bonds held by the holder is tendered, the tendering holder should fill in the principal amount tendered in the column labeled

"Aggregate Principal Amount Tendered" of Box 1 above. The entire principal amount of Original Bonds delivered to the Exchange Agent will be deemed to have been tendered unless otherwise indicated. If the entire principal amount of all Original Bonds held by the holder is not tendered, then Original Bonds for the principal amount of Original Bonds not tendered and Exchange Bonds issued in exchange for any Original Bonds tendered and accepted will be sent to the holder at his or her registered address, unless a different address is provided in the appropriate box on this Letter of Transmittal, promptly following the Expiration Date.

4. Signatures on Letter of Transmittal; Signature Guarantees. If this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holder(s) of the tendered Original Bonds, the signature must correspond with the name(s) as written on the face of the tendered Original Bonds without alteration, enlargement or any change whatsoever.

If any of the tendered Original Bonds are registered in the name of two or more holders, all holders must sign this Letter of Transmittal. If any Original Bonds tendered hereby are registered in different names on several certificates, it will be necessary to complete, sign and submit as many separate copies of the Letter of Transmittal as there are different registrations of certificates.

If this Letter of Transmittal or any Original Bond or instrument of transfer is signed by a trustee, executor, administrator, guardian, attorney-in-fact, agent, officer of a corporation or other person acting in a fiduciary or representative capacity, such person should so indicate when signing, and proper evidence satisfactory to CFC of such person's authority to so act must be submitted.

When this Letter of Transmittal is signed by the registered holders of the Original Bonds tendered hereby, no endorsements of the Original Bonds or separate instruments of transfer are required unless Exchange Bonds, or Original Bonds not tendered or exchanged, are to be issued to a person other than the registered holders, in which case signatures on the Original Bonds or instruments of transfer must be guaranteed by a Medallion Signature Guarantor, unless the signature is that of an Eligible Institution.

If this Letter of Transmittal is signed other than by the registered holders of the Original Bonds tendered hereby, those Original Bonds must be endorsed or accompanied by appropriate instruments of transfer and a duly completed proxy entitling the signer of this Letter of Transmittal to consent with respect to those Original Bonds, on behalf of the registered holders, in any case signed exactly as the name or names of the registered holders appear on the Original Bonds, and signatures on those Original Bonds or instruments of transfer and proxy must be guaranteed by a Medallion Signature Guarantor, unless the signature is that of an Eligible Institution.

Signatures on this Letter of Transmittal must be guaranteed by a Medallion Signature Guarantor, unless (a) the Original Bonds tendered hereby are tendered by a registered holder that has not completed Box 2 entitled "Special Issuance Instructions" or Box 3 entitled "Special Delivery Instructions" in this Letter of Transmittal, or (b) the Original Bonds are tendered for the account of an Eligible Institution. If the Original Bonds are registered in the name of a person other than the signer of this Letter of Transmittal, if Original Bonds not accepted for exchange or not tendered are to be registered in the name of or returned to a person other than the registered holder, or if Exchange Bonds are to be issued to someone or delivered to someone other than the registered holder of the Original Bonds, then the signatures on this Letter of Transmittal accompanying the tendered Original Bonds must be guaranteed by a Medallion Signature Guarantor as described above.

The Letter of Transmittal and Original Bonds should be sent only to the Exchange Agent, and not to CFC or DTC.

5. Special Issuance and Delivery Instructions. Tendering holders should indicate, in the appropriate box (Box 2 or 3), the name and address to which the Exchange Bonds and/or substitute certificates evidencing Original Bonds for principal amounts not tendered or not accepted for exchange are to be sent, if different from the name and address of the person signing this Letter of Transmittal. In the case of issuance in a different name,

the taxpayer identification or social security number of the person named must also be indicated. If not instructions are given, the Original Bonds not exchanged will be returned to the name or address of the person signing the Letter of Transmittal. The Exchange Bonds are being issued in book-entry form only. **Holders of Original Bonds who are not DTC participants must specify the name of a DTC participant to receive their Exchange Bonds.**

6. Transfer Taxes. CFC will pay all transfer taxes, if any, applicable to the exchange of tendered Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer. If, however, Exchange Bonds and/or substitute Original Bonds not exchanged are to be delivered to, or are to be registered or issued in the name of, any person other than the registered holder of the Original Bonds tendered hereby, or if Original Bonds tendered hereby are registered in the name of any person other than the person signing this Letter of Transmittal, or if a transfer tax is imposed for any reason other than the transfer and exchange of tendered Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer, then the amount of any such transfer taxes (whether imposed on the registered holder or on any other person) will be payable by the tendering holder. If satisfactory evidence of payment of those taxes or exemption from those taxes is not submitted with this Letter of Transmittal, the amount of those transfer taxes will be billed directly to the tendering holder.

Except as provided in this Instruction 6, it will not be necessary for transfer tax stamps to be affixed to the tendering Original Bonds listed in this Letter of Transmittal.

- 7. Validity of Tenders. All questions as to validity, form, eligibility (including time of receipt), acceptance and withdrawal of tendering Original Bonds will be determined by CFC. This determination will be final and binding. CFC reserves the right to reject any and all tenders of Original Bonds not in proper form or the acceptance of which for exchange may, in the opinion of CFC's counsel, be unlawful. CFC also reserves the right to waive any conditions of the Exchange Offer or any defect or irregularity in the tender of Original Bonds. The interpretation of the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offer (including this Letter of Transmittal and the instructions hereto) by CFC will be final and binding on all parties. Unless waived, any defects or irregularities in connection with tenders of Original Bonds must be cured within such time as CFC determines. Neither CFC, the Exchange Agent nor any other person will be under any duty to give notification of defects or irregularities to holders of Original Bonds or incur any liability for failure to give such notification. Tenders of Original Bonds will not be deemed to have been made until the defects or irregularities have been cured or waived, or if Original Bonds are submitted in principal amount greater than the principal amount of Original Bonds being tendered, the unaccepted or non-exchanged Original Bonds or substitute Original Bonds evidencing the unaccepted or non-exchanged portion of the Original Bonds, as appropriate, will be returned by the Exchange Agent to the tendering holders, unless otherwise provided in this Letter of Transmittal, promptly following the Expiration Date.
- 8. Amendments; Waiver of Conditions. Subject to applicable law, CFC reserves the right, in its sole and absolute discretion, to amend the Exchange Offer or waive any conditions of the Exchange Offer in case of any Original Bonds validly tendered, in whole or in part, at any time and from time to time. If the Exchange Offer is amended in a manner that CFC determines constitutes a material change, including the waiver of a material condition, CFC will extend the Exchange Offer to the extent necessary to provide that at least five business days remain in the Exchange Offer following notice of the material change.
- **9.** No Condition Tenders. No alternative, conditional, irregular or contingent tender of Original Bonds or transmittal of this Letter of Transmittal will be accepted.
- 10. Mutilated, Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Original Bonds. Any holder whose Original Bonds have been mutilated, lost, stolen or destroyed should contact the Exchange Agent at the address indicated in this Letter of Transmittal for further instructions.
- 11. Requests for Assistance or Additional Copies. Questions and requests for assistance or additional copies of the Prospectus or this Letter of Transmittal may be directed to the Exchange Agent at the address and telephone number indicated in this Letter of Transmittal. Holders may also contact their broker, dealer, commercial bank, trust company or other nominee for assistance concerning the Exchange Offer.

- 12. Acceptance of Tendered Original Bonds and Issuance of Exchange Bonds; Return of Original Bonds. Subject to the terms and conditions of the Exchange Offer, CFC will accept for exchange all validly tendered Original Bonds promptly after the Expiration Date and will issue Exchange Bonds for the Original Bonds promptly thereafter. For purposes of the Exchange Offer, CFC will be deemed to have accepted tendered Original Bonds when, as and if CFC has given written notice or oral notice (immediately confirmed in writing) of acceptance to the Exchange Agent. If any tendered Original Bonds are not exchanged pursuant to the Exchange Offer for any reason, those unexchanged Original Bonds will be returned, without expense, to the tendering holder at the address show in Box 1 or at a different address as may be indicated in this Letter of Transmittal under "Special Delivery Instructions" (Box 3).
- 13. Withdrawal. Tenders may be withdrawn only pursuant to the procedures set forth in the Prospectus under the caption "The Exchange Offer—Withdrawal of Tenders of Original Bonds".

THIS LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL (OR FACSIMILE THEREOF), PROPERLY COMPLETED AND DULY EXECUTED (TOGETHER WITH ANY REQUIRED SIGNATURE GUARANTEES AND CONFIRMATION OF BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER AND ALL OTHER REQUIRED DOCUMENTS), MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE EXCHANGE AGENT AT ITS ADDRESS SET FORTH BELOW AT OR PRIOR TO THE EXPIRATION DATE FOR HOLDERS OF ORIGINAL BONDS WISHING TO VALIDLY TENDER THEIR ORIGINAL BONDS AND RECEIVE THE EXCHANGE BONDS.

The Exchange Agent for the Exchange Offer is:

D.F. King & Co., Inc.

By Mail, By Hand and Overnight Courier:

48 Wall Street, 22nd Floor New York, NY 10005 Attention: Elton Bagley

By Facsimile (for eligible institutions only): (212) 809-8838

Confirmation Call: (212) 493-6996

Banks and Brokers: (212) 269-5550 Toll Free: (800) 659-5550



NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORPORATION

OFFER TO EXCHANGE

UP TO \$379,372,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 4.023% COLLATERAL TRUST BONDS DUE 2032 THAT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED

FOR

ANY AND ALL OUTSTANDING 4.023% COLLATERAL TRUST BONDS DUE 2032 THAT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED

PURSUANT TO THE PROSPECTUS DATED FEBRUARY 5, 2013

To: Brokers, Dealers, Commercial Banks, Trust Companies and Other Nominees:

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation ("CFC") is offering, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the prospectus, dated February 5, 2013 (the "Prospectus"), and the enclosed letter of transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal"), to exchange (the "Exchange Offer") its 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for any and all of its outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 (the "Original Bonds"). The Exchange Offer is being made in order to satisfy certain obligations of CFC contained in the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2012, between CFC and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC.

We are requesting that you contact your clients for whom you hold Original Bonds regarding the Exchange Offer. For your information and for forwarding to your clients for whom you hold Original Bonds registered in your name or in the name of your nominee, or who hold Original Bonds registered in their own names, we are enclosing the following documents:

- 1. Prospectus, dated February 5, 2013;
- 2. The Letter of Transmittal for your use and for the information of your clients;
- 3. A form of letter which may be sent to your clients for whose account you holder Original Bonds registered in your name or the name of your nominee, with space provided for obtaining such clients' instructions with regard to the Exchange Offer; and
 - 4. Return envelopes addressed to D.F. King & Co., Inc., the Exchange Agent for the Exchange Offer.

YOUR PROMPT ACTION IS REQUESTED. THE EXCHANGE OFFER WILL EXPIRE AT 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON MARCH 6, 2013, UNLESS EXTENDED BY CFC (THE "EXPIRATION DATE"). ORIGINAL BONDS TENDERED PURSUANT TO THE EXCHANGE OFFER MAY BE WITHDRAWN AT ANY TIME PRIOR TO 5:00 P.M., NEW YORK CITY TIME, ON THE EXPIRATION DATE.

To participate in the Exchange Offer, a duly executed and properly completed Letter of Transmittal (or facsimile thereof or Agent's Message in lieu thereof), with any required signature guarantees and any other required documents, should be sent to the Exchange Agent, and certificates representing the Original Bonds should be delivered to the Exchange Agent, all in accordance with the instructions set forth in the Letter of Transmittal and the Prospectus.

CFC will, upon request, reimburse brokers, dealers, commercial banks and trust companies for reasonable and necessary costs and expenses incurred by them in forwarding the Prospectus and related documents to the

beneficial owners of Original Bonds held by them as nominee or in a fiduciary capacity. CFC will pay or cause to be paid all stock transfer taxes applicable to the exchange of Original Bonds pursuant to the Exchange Offer, except as set forth in Instruction 6 of the Letter of Transmittal.

Any inquiries you may have with respect to the Exchange Offer, or requests for additional copies of the enclosed materials, should be directed to D.F. King & Co., Inc. at its address and telephone number set forth in the Letter of Transmittal.

Very Truly Yours,

National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation

NOTHING HEREIN OR IN THE ENCLOSED DOCUMENTS SHALL CONSTITUTE YOU OR ANY PERSON AS AN AGENT OF CFC OR THE EXCHANGE AGENT, OR AUTHORIZE YOU OR ANY OTHER PERSON TO USE ANY DOCUMENT OR MAKE ANY STATEMENTS ON BEHALF OF EITHER OF THEM WITH RESPECT TO THE EXCHANGE OFFER, EXCEPT FOR STATEMENTS EXPRESSLY MADE IN THE PROSPECTUS OR THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL.



NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORPORATION

OFFER TO EXCHANGE

UP TO \$379,372,000 AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF 4.023% COLLATERAL TRUST BONDS DUE 2032 THAT HAVE BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED

FOR

ANY AND ALL OUTSTANDING 4.023% COLLATERAL TRUST BONDS DUE 2032 THAT HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED

PURSUANT TO THE PROSPECTUS DATED FEBRUARY 5, 2013

To Our Clients:

Enclosed for your consideration is a prospectus, dated February 5, 2013 (the "Prospectus"), and the related letter of transmittal (the "Letter of Transmittal"), relating to the offer of National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation ("CFC") to exchange (the "Exchange Offer") its 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, for any and all of its outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 (the "Original Bonds"), upon the terms and subject to the conditions described in the Prospectus and the Letter of Transmittal. The Exchange Offer is being made in order to satisfy certain obligations of CFC contained in the Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of October 16, 2012, between CFC and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC.

This material is being forwarded to you as the beneficial owner of the Original bonds held by us for your account but not registered in your name. A TENDER OF SUCH ORIGINAL BONDS MAY ONLY BE MADE BY US AS THE HOLDER OF RECORD AND PURSUANT TO YOUR INSTRUCTIONS.

Accordingly, we request instructions as to whether you wish us to tender on your behalf the Original Bonds held by us for your account, pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth in the enclosed Prospectus and Letter of Transmittal.

Your instructions should be forwarded to us as promptly as possible in order to permit us to tender the Original Bonds on your behalf in accordance with the provisions of the Exchange Offer. The Exchange Offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless extended by CFC. Any Original Bonds tendered pursuant to the Exchange Offer may be withdrawn at any time prior to 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on the expiration date.

Your attention is directed to the following:

- 1. The Exchange Offer is for any and all Original Bonds.
- 2. The Exchange Offer is subject to certain conditions set forth in the Prospectus in the section captioned "The Exchange Offer Conditions to the Exchange Offer."
- 3. Any transfer taxes incident to the transfer of Original Bonds from the holder to CFC will be paid by CFC, except as otherwise provided in the Instructions in the Letter of Transmittal.
- 4. The Exchange Offer will expire at 5:00 p.m., New York City time, on March 6, 2013, unless extended by CFC.

If you wish to tender your Original Bonds, please so instruct us by completing, executing and returning to us the information form on the back of this letter. THE LETTER OF TRANSMITTAL IS FURNISHED TO YOU FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND MAY NOT BE USED DIRECTLY BY YOU TO TENDER ORIGINAL BONDS.

INSTRUCTIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE EXCHANGE OFFER

The undersigned acknowledge(s) receipt of your letter and the enclosed material referred to therein relating to the Exchange Offer made by National Rural Utilities Cooperative Finance Corporation with respect to its Original Bonds.

This will instruct you to tender the Original Bonds held by you for the account of the undersigned, upon and subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the Prospectus and the related Letter of Transmittal.

The undersigned expressly agrees to be bound by the enclosed Letter of Transmittal and that such Letter of Transmittal may be enforced against the undersigned.

Transmittar may be embreed aga	mot the discription.			
Please tender the	Original Bonds held by you for my account as indicated below:			
4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032				
	\$			
*	(Aggregate Principal Amount of Original Bonds)			
Please do not tend	ler the Original Bonds held by you for my account.			
Dated:				
Signature(s):				
Print Name(s) here:				
Print Address(es):				
Area Code and Telephone Numb	per(s):			
Tax Identification or Social Secu	urity Number(s):			
	by us for your account will be tendered unless we receive written instructions ific contrary instruction is given in the space provided, your signature(s) hereo			

n shall constitute an instruction to us to tender all the Original Bonds held by us for your account.



NATIONAL RURAL UTILITIES COOPERATIVE FINANCE CORPORATION

Offer to Exchange up to \$379,372,000 Aggregate Principal Amount of 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended for

Any and all outstanding 4.023% Collateral Trust Bonds due 2032 that have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended

THE EXCHANGE AGENT FOR THE EXCHANGE OFFER IS:

D.F. King & Co., Inc.

By Mail, By Hand and Overnight Courier:

48 Wall Street, 22nd Floor New York, NY 10005 Attention: Elton Bagley

By Facsimile (for eligible institutions only): (212) 809-8838

Confirmation Call: (212) 493-6996

Banks and Brokers: (212) 493-6996 Toll Free: (800) 659-5550